
 
 
To,         Date: September 12, 2022 
BSE Limited, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalai Street, Mumbai -400 001 
 
BSE Scrip Code: 504240 
 
Sub:     Intimation of Book Closure and Notice of 57th  Annual General Meeting along with    

Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
Dear Sir,  
 
This is to inform you that pursuant to Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made there under, the Register of Members & Share Transfer Register of the Company will be 
closed from 24th September, 2022 to 30th September, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose 
of 57th Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
 
Also, pursuant to Regulation 30 & 34 read with Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find attached the Notice of 57th Annual 
General Meeting along with Annual Report of the Company for financial year 2021-22.  
 
You are requested to kindly take the same on record. 
 
Thanking you, 
 
For Delton Cables Limited 
 
 
 
Vikas Rawat 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
Encl: as above 
 
 
Note: This corporate announcement is being resubmitted after affixing DSC as per BSE circular 
no. 20220801-24 dated 01.08.2022 and circular no. 20220907-17 dated 07.09.2022. However, the 
said announcement was already filed within time as stipulated under the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 on 07.09.2022. 
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 57th Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Delton Cables Limited (CIN : 
L31300DL1964PLC004255) will be held on Friday, the 30th 
September, 2022 at 10.00 A.M, through Video Conferencing 
(VC)/other audio-visual mode (OAVM) to transact the following 
businesses:

Ordinary Business

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statement of the Company and the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon for the FY ended on 31st 
March, 2022.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Shalini Gupta (DIN: 
00035938), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself 
for re-appointment.

3.	 To re-appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company and 
fix their remuneration for a second term of five Consecutive 
years and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 141, 142 and 
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof) and pursuant to the recommendations 
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company, M/s. Bansal & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants 
New Delhi (Firm Reg. No. 001113N) be and is hereby re-
appointed as the statutory auditor of the Company for a 
second term of 5 (five) consecutive years who shall hold 
office from the conclusion of the 57th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of the 62th Annual General Meeting to 
be held in the year 2027 at such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors (including 
its committees thereof) of the Company and the Statutory 
Auditors.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and /
or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby 
jointly/severally authorized to do any acts, deeds, matters 
and things to give effect to this resolution including the filing 
of requisite information, forms and any other documents 
etc. with the Registrar of Companies and other concerned 
authority.”

Special Business

4.	 Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Poddar as an Independent 
Director 

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other 
applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including 
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), Mr. Abhishek Poddar (DIN: 00031175) 
who was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board 
of the Company w.e.f. 02.09.2022 to hold office up to the 
date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for 
appointment and in respect of whom a notice in writing under 
section 160 proposing his candidature has been received, 
be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other 
applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including 
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), appointment of Mr. Abhishek Poddar 
(DIN: 00031175) as Non Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, w.e.f. 
02.09.2022 up to a period of 5 consecutive years be and is 
hereby approved.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and /
or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby 
jointly/severally authorized to do any acts, deeds, matters 
and things to give effect to this resolution including the filing 
of requisite information, forms and any other documents 
etc. with the Registrar of Companies and other concerned 
authority.”

5.	 Approval of Remuneration of Cost Auditor  

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) M/s J. 
Chandra & Associates , Cost Accountants (FRN: 000384), 
appointed as Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors for 
conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2022-23, be paid a Remuneration of Rs. 
80,000 (Rupees Eighty Thousand Only) and reimbursement 
of out of pocket expenses that may be incurred during the 
course of audit of cost records of the Company.” 

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and /
or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby 
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jointly/severally authorized to do any acts, deeds, matters 
and things to give effect to this resolution including the filing 
of requisite information, forms and any other documents 
etc. with the Registrar of Companies and other concerned 
authority.”

By Order of the Board
For Delton Cables Limited

 Sd/-
Place : New Delhi 	  (Vikas Rawat)
Date : 02nd September, 2022	  Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide its 
Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05 2022 read together with 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08,2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 
May 05,2020 Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08 
,2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 
(collectively referred as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/ 
CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, permitted 
to convene the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through 
Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) without the physical presence of the members at 
a common venue. In accordance with the said circulars of 
MCA read with SEBI Circulars, provisions of the Companies 
Act,2013 (“the Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), the 57th 
(“fifty-seventh”) AGM of the Company is being held through 
VC/OAVM. The deemed Venue for the 57th AGM shall be the 
Registered office of the Company.

2.	 In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with 
the rules made there under, the listed companies may 
send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including 
financial statements, boards’ report, etc. by electronic mode. 
Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read with the MCA 
Circular dated May 05, 2022 and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular dated May 13, 2022, Notice 
of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being 
sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email address is registered with the Company/ Registrar 
and Transfer Agent/Depository Participants/Depositories. 
Members may note that the Notice of the fifty-seventh AGM 
and Annual Report for FY 2021-22 will also be available on 
the Company’s website at i.e. www.deltoncables.com, and 
on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.

3.	 The explanatory statement pursuant to section 102(1) of 
the Companies act, 2013 (‘the Act’) relating to the special 
businesses to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. 
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting 

held on 02nd September, 2022 considered that the special 
businesses under Item No. 4 and 5 being considered 
unavoidable, be transacted at the 57th AGM of the Company.

4.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to 
attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held 
pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars through 
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of members has been 
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM. 
Hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed 
to this Notice.

5.	 Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned 
copy (pdf/ jpg format) of its board or governing body’s 
resolution/ authorisation, etc., authorising their representative 
to attend the AGM on its behalf and to vote through remote 
e-voting. The said resolution/authorisation shall be sent to 
the Company at cs@deltoncables.com.

6.	 The facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM will 
be opened 15 minutes before and will be open upto 30 
minutes after the scheduled start time of the AGM and will 
be available for 1,000 members on a first- come first-served 
basis. This rule would however not apply to participation of 
shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 
Auditors, etc.

7.	 To receive communications through electronic means, 
including Annual Reports and Notices, members are 
requested to kindly register/update their email address with 
their respective depository participant (DPs), where shares 
are held in demat mode. 

8.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from 24th September, 2022 to 
30th September, 2022 (both days inclusive). 

9.	  Central Depository Securities (India) Limited (“CDSL”) will 
be providing facility for voting through remote e-voting and 
participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM and e-voting 
during the AGM. E-voting will commences on Tuesday, 
27th September, 2022 (10.00 AM) and ends on Thursday, 
29th September, 2022 (05.00 PM). During this period, 
shareholders of the company, holding shares as on the cut-
off date of 23rd September, 2022 (Friday) are entitled to cast 
their vote electronically and during the AGM. The e-voting 
portal will be blocked by CDSL for voting thereafter.

10.	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 
becomes Member of the Company after e-mailing of Notice 
by the Company and holding physical/demat shares as on 
the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
call on toll free no. 1800225533.
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11.	 Attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 
VC/OVAM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under section 103 of the Act.

12.	 Statutory Registers as maintain under Companies Act 2013 
will be available electronically for inspection by the member 
on the website of the Company at www.deltoncables.com 
during the time of AGM, basis the request being send on 
cs@deltoncables.com.

13.	 In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears 
as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register 
of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 
e-AGM.

14.	 The notice is being emailed/dispatched to all the members 
whose names appear on the register of members on 02nd 
September 2022.

15.	 Members are requested to address all correspondence 
including dividend matters, to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent i.e. M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer 
Services (P) Ltd. at the following address:

	 Beetal House, IIIrd Floor,

	 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Complex,

	 Near Dada Harsukh Das Mandir, New Delhi – 110 062 

16.	 Members are hereby informed that Dividend which remains 
unclaimed / un-encashed over a period of seven years, 
has to be transferred as per the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and of Companies Act, 1956 to 
“The Investor Education & Protection Fund” constituted by 
the Central Government. Members are also requested to 
note that pursuant to the provisions of section 124 of the 
Act and IEPF rules, the company is obliged to transfer all 
share on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 
seven consecutive years or more to IEPF demat account. 
It may please be noted that once unclaimed/un-encashed 
dividend/shares are transferred to Investor Education & 
Protection Fund” as above, no claims shall lie in respect of 
such amount by the shareholder. However, any shareholder 
may claim the shares or apply for unclaimed dividend as the 
case may be from the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority by submitting online application in Form 
IEPF-5 available on the website www.iepf.gov.in along with 
prescribed documents and fee specified by the Authority. 

17.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 
submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents or to the Company at 
its registered office.

18.	 Shareholders who have already voted through remote 
E-Voting prior to the meeting date may attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to vote during the AGM.

19.	 Mr. Vaibhav Sharma, Proprietor of M/s Vaibhav Sharma 
and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP No. 
10831) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the remote e-voting process and voting through electronic 
system during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

20.	 The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion 
of e-voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through 
remote e-voting and e-votes cast during the AGM and will 
make, not later than 48 hours from the Conclusion of AGM, 
a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of total e- votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same 
and declare the results of the voting forthwith. 

21.	 The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report will 
be placed on the company’s website www.deltoncables.com 
and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.co.in within 
2 working days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of 
the company and communicated to the Stock Exchange i.e. 
BSE Limited. 

22.	 SEBI vide its notification dated 8 June 2018 read with SEBI 
notification dated 30 November 2018, has stipulated that 
w.e.f. 1 April 2019, transfer of securities (except transmission 
or transposition of shares) shall not be processed, unless 
the securities are held in the dematerialised form. However, 
SEBI vide circular dated 7 September 2020 had fixed 
31 March 2021 as the cut-off date for re-lodgment for 
any pending physical transfers and that such transferred 
shares shall be issued only in demat mode. Members who 
still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to 
dematerialise their shareholding to avail numerous benefits 
of dematerialisation, which include transferability, easy 
liquidity, trading, savings in stamp duty and elimination of 
any possibility of loss of documents

23.	 The relevant details in respect of directors seeking 
appointment at this 57th AGM under item no. 2 and item 
no.4 of this notice are provided as Annexure to this notice as 
required under Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended from time to time. 

24.	 Members who need technical assistance before or during 
the AGM can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact Mr. Rakesh Dalvi Manager, (CDSL,). 
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THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING 
AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGSARE AS UNDER:

1.	 As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to 
COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the 
companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 
2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). 
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing 
AGM through VC/OAVM.

2.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA 
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 
2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to 
its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted 
at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered 
into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of 
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as 
the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided 
by CDSL.

3.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will 
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% 
or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons 
of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.	 Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 
2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote 
for the members is not available for this AGM. However, 
in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such 
as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body 
corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast 
their votes through e-voting.

6.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular 
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.deltoncables.com . The Notice can also be accessed 

from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated 
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote 
e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) 
i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

7.	 The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 
8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 
and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING 
AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of 
shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode. 

(i)	 The voting period begins on 27th September, 2022 (10.00 
AM) and ends on Thursday, 29th September, 2022 (05.00 
PM). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date 23rd September, 2022 (Friday) 
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii)	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting 
date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii)	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed 
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 
its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. 
However, it has been observed that the participation by the 
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at 
a negligible level. 

	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers 
(ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, 
pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of 
a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote 
without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing 
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

	 Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.
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(iv)	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method 
for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/
NSDLis given below:

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository

1)	Users who have opted for CDSL Easi 
/ Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to 
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
visit www.cdslindia.com and click on 
Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi.

2)	After successful login the Easi / Easiest 
user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where 
the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the 
system ofall e-Voting Service Providers 
i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, 
so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly.

3)	 If the user is not registered for Easi/
Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
Registration/EasiRegistration

4)	Alternatively, the user can directly 
access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page or 
click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/
Evoting/EvotingLogin The system 
will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting optionwhere 
the evoting is in progress and also 
able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers.

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository

1)	If you are already registered for 
NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on 
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)	 If the user is not registered for IDeAS 
e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.
com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.
com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)	Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User 
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting
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Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities 
in demat 
mode) login 
through their 
Depository 
Participants 
(DP)

You can also login using the login 
credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
After Successful login, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Once you click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can 
see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 
ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue 
in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case 
of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form.

1)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
www.evotingindia.com.

2)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

3)	 Now enter your User ID 

a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 
Client ID, 

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company.

4)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click 
on Login.

5)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 
on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any company, then your existing password 
is to be used. 

6)	 If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and 
other than individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN 
issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders 
as well as physical shareholders)

•	 Shareholders who have not updated 
their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested 
to use the sequence number sent by 
Company/RTA or contact Company/
RTA.

Dividend 
Bank Details
OR Date of 
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or 
Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in 
the company records in order to login.

•	 If both the details are not recorded 
with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details 
field.

(vi)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” 
tab.

(vii)	Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 
directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

(viii)	For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details 
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in 
this Notice.

(ix)	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant Delton Cables Limited on 
which you choose to vote.
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(x)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The 
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view 
the entire Resolution details.

(xii)	After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, 
click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change 
your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your 
vote.

(xiii)	Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv)	You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv)	If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password 
then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system.

(xvi)	There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any 
uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 
verification.

(xvii)	Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders 
and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.

•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the 
“Corporates” module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the 
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User 
should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the 
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped 
automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 
mapping.

•	 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board 
Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.

•	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required 
mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company 

at the email address viz; cs@deltoncables.com, if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in 
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE 
AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING 
ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day 
of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available 
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for 
e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will 
be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through 
Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 
use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation 
in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting may register themselves as 
a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 
days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
cs@deltoncables.com. The shareholders who do not wish 
to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at cs@deltoncables.com .These queries will 
be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 
a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting 
available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have 
not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, 
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then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/
MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/
DEPOSITORIES.

1. 	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details 
like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. 	 For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & 
mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP)

3. 	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & 
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM 
& e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or contact at 
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL), Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai 
- 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE

ITEM No. 4

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on 02.09.2022 has appointed Mr. Abhishek Poddar (DIN: 
00031175) as an Additional Director of the Company and also 
as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for 
a term of 5 years w.e.f 02.09.2022, subject to the approval of 
shareholders. 

That pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Mr. Abhishek Poddar, hold office upto this AGM and 
is eligible for appointment as Director of the Company. The 
Company has, in terms of section 160 of the Act, received a 

notice in writing from member(s) proposing his candidature 
for the office of Directors. The Company has also received a 
declaration from Mr. Abhishek Poddar (DIN: 00031175). to the 
effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided 
under section 149 of the Act read with rules made thereunder. 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV 
of the Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the appointment 
of Mr. Abhishek Poddar (DIN: 00031175) as an Independent 
Director are being placed before members for approval. 

Thus, the Board Recommends the resolution set out in item no. 4 
of the Notice for approval of Shareholders as Special Resolution. 

None of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise except Mr. Abhishek Poddar, in the 
Special resolution set out under item no. 4 of the notice.

ITEM No. 5

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 02.09.2022 and 
on the recommendation of audit committee has appointed M/s 
J Chandra & Associates, Cost Accountants, (FRN: 000384) as 
the Cost Auditor to audit the cost records of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2022-23 at a Remuneration of Rs. 80,000/- 
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses that may incur 
during the course of audit of cost records of the Company, in 
accordance with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014.

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Cost 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the remuneration to be paid 
to the Cost Auditor as recommended by audit committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors is subject to the ratification 
by the shareholders of the Company Accordingly consent of the 
shareholders is being sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution 
as set out under item no. 5 of the notice.

None of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the Ordinary resolution set out under 
item no.5 of the notice.

 By Order of the Board
For Delton Cables Limited

 Sd/-
Place : New Delhi 	 (Vikas Rawat)
Date : 02nd September, 2022	 Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

I. Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (In pursuance of 
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Listing Agreement)

Particulars Mrs. Shalini Gupta  Mr. Abhishek Poddar
DIN 00035938 00031175
Date of Birth 15-10-1968 13-08-1967
Date of First Appointment 14.08.2014 02.09.2022
Qualifications, Experience & 
Expertise/ Background details

Graduate from Bombay University and 
one who has a wealth of experience and 
has inspired and let the implementation of 
many path-breaking initiatives.

Mr. Abhishek Poddar, is Managing Director of M 
B Group having interests in Manufacture, Trading 
of Tea and Manufacture of Industrial Explosives. 
Over the years, he has acquired varied experience 
in the spheres of Finance, Administration, Human 
Resources and General Management. 

Mr. Abhishek Poddar has widely travelled 
throughout the world including several business 
trips and is ever striving to bring Indian Technology 
to international standards. 

Abhishek studied at The Doon School and 
graduated in Commerce from St Xaviers – Calcutta 
University.

Shares held in company 278151 Nil
Directorship in other Companies 1.	 Vishranti Trading Enterprises 

Limited;
2.	 B And M Trading And Investment Co 

Ltd;
3.	 SIV India Private Limited
4.	 Inkit Creative Pvt Ltd

1.	 Bosanquet Exports Limited;
2.	 Sua Explosives and Accessories Pvt Ltd;
3.	 Matheson Bosanquet Enterprises Pvt Ltd;
4.	 Neology Solutions Pvt Ltd;
5.	 Yettinahole Hydro Electric Company Pvt Ltd;
6.	 MB Leisure Tours Pvt Ltd;
7.	 Hope Textiles Ltd;
8.	 Opezee Pvt Ltd;
9.	 JSL Lifestyle Ltd:
10.	 Tasveer Arts Pvt Ltd;
11.	 Cinnamon Boutique Pvt Ltd: and
12.	 Syenergy Environics Ltd

Membership/ Chairmanship of 
committees of other Boards

NIL NIL

Name of the listed entities in which 
director(s) has resigned from the 
past three years.

NIL NIL

Name of the Committees of listed 
entity in which director(s) has 
resigned from the past three years.

NIL NIL

Last drawn remuneration details 
along with remuneration sought to 
be paid

Sitting fee was paid to her in the capacity 
of Non-Executive Director.

NIL

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during the FY 2021-22

Given in Corporate Governance Report N.A.

Relationship with other Directors 
and KMP

Mrs. Shalini Gupta is wife of Mr. Vivek 
Gupta, Managing Director of the 
Company.

N.A.

By Order of the Board
For Delton Cables Limited

 Sd/-
Place : New Delhi 						       (Vikas Rawat)
Date : 02nd September, 2022	  				     Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
THE MEMBERS,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 57th Annual 
Report on the business and operations of Delton Cables Limited 
(“the Company”) together with the Audited Financial Statement 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from operation  15966.27 12,316.30

Other Income 59.93 154.11

Total Income 16026.20 12,470.41

Total Expenditure 15921.18 12,347.49

Profit / (Loss) Before Exceptional 
Item and Tax

105.02 122.92

Add : Exceptional Item (indicate 
nature)

(0.08) 7.09

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 104.95 130.01

Less :Income Tax 19.91 22.56

Add :Deferred Tax (0.57) 46.63

Less :Adjustment of taxes for earlier 
years

9.00 (1.51)

Net Profit / (Loss) 76.61 62.32

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

During the year under review, the Company achieved Revenue 
from operations of Rs. 15,966.27 lakhs as compared to Rs. 
12,316.30 lakhs in the previous financial year. Further, the 
Company has earned profit of Rs. 76.61 lakhs in the current 
financial year as against profit of Rs. 62.32 lakhs in the previous 
financial year. 

COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND ITS IMPACT

The second wave of the global health pandemic COVID-19 in the 
month of April and May 2021 in India and the lockdown imposed 
by the State Governments resulted in slowdown of most of the 
businesses in India. Your Company’s plant continued to operate 
as per the business requirements and in compliance with the 
instructions and guidelines issued by the Government of India and 
the respective State Governments. The Company took conscious 
decision to balance uninterrupted operations and ensuring a safe 
working environment. The company is continuously ensuring 
a safe working environment to its employees by sanitizing 
its workplace regularly. Your Company has complied with the 
COVID-19 guidelines issued by the Government of India and 
the respective State Governments. The Board of Directors 
expressed their satisfaction about the way company has handled 
the business during the period of COVID-19 outbreak.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the 
General Reserve out of the amount available for appropriations.

DIVIDEND

Due to the working capital requirements in the Company, the 
Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the 
financial year 2021-22. Also, the Board proposes to reserve 
appropriate portion of profit for enhancing business.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2022 was Rs. 
8, 64,00,000/-. During the year under review, the Company has 
not altered its share capital.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review your Company has not accepted 
any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There has been no change in the nature of business of the 
Company, during the year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company which have occurred between 
the end of the Financial Year 2021-22 and the date of the report.

AUDITORS

1.	 Statutory Auditors:

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Members of the Company at their 
53rd Annual General Meeting held in the year 2018, approved 
the appointment of M/s. Bansal & Co, LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, New Delhi (Firm Reg. No. 001113N), as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 
53rd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of ensuing 
57th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

	 The Audit reports dated May 27, 2022 issued by M/s. Bansal 
& Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors on the 
Company’s financial statements for the financial year ended 
2021-22 is part of the Annual Report. There has been no 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark in their Report.

	 The Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, has recommended the re-appointment 
of M/s. Bansal & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Reg. No. 001113N), as statutory auditors of the Company 
for second term of 5 (five) consecutive years to the members 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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Accordingly, a resolution proposing appointment of M/s. 
Bansal & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants, as statutory 
auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 57th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of 62th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company pursuant to Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, forms part of the Notice calling 57th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, Further, M/s. 
Bansal & Co, LLP has furnished a certificate of their eligibility 
and consent for appointment under Section 139(1) & 141 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

2.	 Secretarial Auditors:

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and The 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the 
Company had appointed Mrs. Malavika Bansal, Practicing 
Company Secretary (COP: 9159) as the Secretarial Auditor 
in their Meeting held on 09th June, 2021 to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 . The Secretarial Audit Report is 
annexed as Annexure I.

	 The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2022 does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

3.	 Cost Record and Audit:

	 Pursuant to the provision of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules & regulations made there under 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) the Company is required 
to appoint Cost Auditor to conduct the cost audit for the 
Financial Year 2021-22.

	 Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company has 
appointed M/s. J. Chandra & Associates, Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration no. 000384), as Cost Auditor of the 
Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-22 under Section 148 
of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014. 

	 The Board has duly examined the Report issued by the 
Cost Auditors of the Company on the Cost Accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Report doesn’t 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

QUALITY POLICY / CERTIFICATION

Your Company’s Mission is ‘SUCCESS OF ITS CUSTOMERS’. 
Your Company is always committed to provide good quality 
products consistently to its customers worldwide. Your 
Management on its part is also fully committed to further improve 
quality and provides all inputs and resources to achieve this goal.

Your company is certified for ISO 9001:2008 in quality.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant material orders have been passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS U/S 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

During the financial year 2021-22 your Company has not made 
any loan, guarantee and investment u/s 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year all Related Party Transactions were 
on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business 
and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

There were no transactions during the year which would require 
to be reported in Form AOC.2.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, Mr. Surender Singh Bhandari had resigned 
from the position of Whole-Time Director on August 09, 2021. 
The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable 
contribution made by him during his tenure as Whole-time 
Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. 
Shashi Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08485614) as an Additional 
Director, designated as Whole-time director of the Company for 
a period of 3 (Three) consecutive years from August 11, 2021. 
Appointment of Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma as the Whole-time 
director of the Company was subsequently approved by the 
Shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) on September 30, 2021.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma carries 
rich experience in Sales and Marketing and it is expected that 
the Company would be immensely benefited from the rich 
experience of Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma.

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra had resigned from the position 
of Non- Executive Independent Director on June 14, 2022. 
The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable 
contribution made by him during his tenure as Independent 
director of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
relevant Rules framed there under and the Articles of Association 
of the Company, Mrs. Shalini Gupta (DIN: 00035938) who retires 
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible offer herself for re-appointment.
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The Board on the recommendations of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee proposed the re-appointment of Mrs. 
Shalini Gupta, as Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by 
rotation on the Board of the Company.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration of 
independence, stating that they meet the criteria of independence 
provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, and 
regulation 16 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Independent Directors have also confirmed compliance 
with the provisions of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to 
inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors.

The Board took on record the declaration and confirmation 
submitted by the Independent Directors regarding meeting 
the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking 
due assessment of the veracity of the same in terms of the 
requirements of regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Key Managerial Personnel

The details of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company 
are as follows:

S. 
No.

Name Designation Date of 
Appointment/
Re-
appointment

Date of 
Cessation

1 Mr. 
Vijender 
Kumar 
Gupta

Chairman & 
Whole-time 
Director

13.08.2020 ---

2 Mr. Vivek 
Gupta

Managing 
Director & CEO

01.08.2020 ---

3 Mr. Shashi 
Kumar 
Sharma

Whole Time 
Director

11.08.2021 ---

4 Mr. Arun 
Kamra

Chief Financial 
Officer

27.06.2020 ---

5 Mr. Vikas 
Rawat

Company 
Secretary

13.11.2018 ---

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, rules & regulations made there under and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 an annual evaluation of performance of 
the Board, Chairman, Independent Directors, Non-executive 
Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Committees has carried out during the year under review.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulated 
the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the 
Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees 
and Directors.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was 
carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being 
evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the 
Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 
Directors, who also reviewed the performance of the Board as 
a whole. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also 
reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and of 
the Directors.

The Chairman of the Board provided feedback to the Directors 
on an individual basis, as appropriate. Significant highlights, 
learning and action points with respect to the evaluation were 
presented to the Board.

COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS 
COMMITTEES 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board met four times. The 
details on composition of the Board, committees, meeting held 
and related attendance are provided in Corporate Governance 
Report and form a part of this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In terms of provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company 
has in place a whistle blower policy, details of which are provided 
in Corporate Governance Report. The Vigil Mechanism and 
Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at www.deltoncables.com.

During the year under review, no protected disclosure concerning 
any reportable matter in accordance with the Vigil Mechanism 
and Whistle Blower Policy of the Company was received by the 
Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees. 
Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 and rules & regulations made there under and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 the policy has been formulated by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board. The Policy is given in the Annexure II.

DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, ETC.

The details of remuneration of Directors, employees and Key 
Managerial Personnel as required under Section 197(12) 
read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is attached 
hereto as Annexure III.

The information required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of The 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 



13

Delton Cables Limited

Personnel) Rules, 2014 is to be provided in the Report. 
However, in terms of the second proviso to Section 136 of the 
Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Shareholders 
excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any Shareholder interested in 
obtaining the same may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company. 

None of the employees listed in the said Annexure is related to 
any Director of the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the annual return as provided under Section 92(3) and 
Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, in the prescribed form, which will 
be filed with the Registrar of Companies/ MCA, is hosted on the 
Company’s website and can be accessed at www.deltoncables.
com

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the 
information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are annexed to this 
report as Annexure IV. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

During the year under review your Company had no Subsidiaries, 
Joint Venture or Associates.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has adequate internal control procedures 
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of 
its business with regard to its operations, financial reporting and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The internal 
control systems are designed to ensure that the financial and other 
records are reliable for the preparation of financial statements 
and for maintaining assets. This is further strengthened by the 
Internal Audit done concurrently. Besides, this Audit Committee 
of the Company is also being regularly appraised the Financial 
control system. The Company also continues its efforts to align 
all its processes and controls with best practices. 	

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report as stipulated under 
Regulation of 17 to 27 & 46(2) read with Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required 
by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms part of this report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 
(“POSH Act”) and Rules made thereunder, the Company has 
formed Internal Committee for its work places to address the 
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment in accordance with 
the POSH Act.

The disclosure required under the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
is given in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETRIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all 
applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee’s prime 
responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its corporate 
social responsibilities by way of formulating and monitoring 
implementation of the objectives set out in the ‘Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy’ (“CSR Policy”).

The CSR Policy of the Company, inter alia, covers CSR vision 
and objective and also provides for governance, implementation, 
monitoring and reporting framework.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed at www.deltoncables.com.

During the year, the Company has not incurred any amount on 
CSR activities, as there was no average profit in terms of Section 
198 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the immediate three 
preceding financial years.

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 as amended from time to time read with the CSR Rules, 
the Annual Report on CSR activities under the format prescribed 
in Annexure II of the CSR Rules is annexed to this Report in 
Annexure V.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company have designed Risk 
Management Policy and guidelines to avoid events, situations 
or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences 
on the Company’s businesses and define a structured 
approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in 
their decision-making pertaining to all business divisions and 
corporate functions. Key business risks and their mitigation are 
considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic 
management reviews.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement u/s 134(3)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013(the “Act”) with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures;

(b)	 the directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 
the end of the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and 
of the profit and loss of the company for the year ended on 
that date;

(c)	 the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

(d)	 the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; and

(e)	 the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

(f)	 the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS 
INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 (IBC)

No such process was initiated during the period under review 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).

DETAILS OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT

The provision of details and disclosure of One Time settlement is 
not applicable to the Company, therefore disclosure of the details 
of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of 
onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from 
the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof 
is also not applicable.
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Sd/-
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Annexure I

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
Delton Cables Limited
Delton House 4801, Bharat Ram Road,
24 Daryaganj, New Delhi- 110002, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Delton Cables Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘Company’) having CIN:L31300DL1964PLC004255. 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by Delton Cables 
Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, 
according to the provisions of: 

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) read with its rules, 
notifications and circulars made there under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the rules made thereunder; (Not Applicable on the 
company during the Audit period)

(iii)	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable on the company 
during the Audit period)

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’): -

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018; (Not Applicable on the company during the Audit 
period)

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not 
applicable on the company during the audit period)

f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable on the company during the audit period)

h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client to the extent securities issued; (Not applicable on 
the Company during the Audit Period)

i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable on 
the company during the Audit period)

j)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable on the 
company during the Audit period)

(vi) We have also examined books, papers forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by Delton Cables 
Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 on 
a limited review basis according to the provisions of:

a)	 Employees Provident Funds and (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act, 1952;

b)	 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

c)	 Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

d)	 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

e)	 The Air (Prevention and Control) Act, 1981;

f)	 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

g)	 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 
1977;

h)	 Factories Act, 1948;
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i)	 Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

j)	 Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

k)	 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013;

l)	 Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

m)	 Apprentices Act, 1961 read with Apprentice Rules, 1992;

n)	 Legal Metrology Act, 2009

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following: -

A.	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

B.	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 
the Stock Exchanges, if applicable.

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted with proper balance of Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ 
views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there is an inadvertent delay in filing 
some e-forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) like 
CHG-1, MGT-14, CRA-4, MSME, DPT 3 and MR 1 during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has 
not taken any actions having a major bearing on the company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is 
annexed as’ Annexure A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

Malavika Bansal 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No. 8231 and CP No.: 9159
UDIN: F008231D000903488 

Place: New Delhi
Date of issue of report: 02.09.2022
Date of signing of report: 03.09.2022  

‘ANNEXURE A’

To, 

The Members, 
Delton Cables Limited
Delton House 4801, Bharat Ram Road,
24 Daryaganj, New Delhi- 110002, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1)	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of 
the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 
our audit.

(2)	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as 
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

(3)	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness 
of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

(4)	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management 
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

(5)	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6)	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.

Malavika Bansal 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No. 8231 and CP No.: 9159
UDIN: F008231D000903488

Place: New Delhi
Date of issue of report: 02.09.2022
Date of signing of report: 03.09.2022  
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Annexure II

REMUNERATION POLICY

General:

(a)	 The Policy relates to appointment and designing the 
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP), Senior Management Personnel (SMP) and other 
employees of the Company.

(b)	 The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to the 
Managing Director, Whole-time Director, KMP and SMP 
will be determined by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. 
The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. shall be 
subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the 
Company and Central Government, wherever required.

(c)	 The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing 
Director, Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with 
the percentage/slabs/conditions laid down in the Articles of 
Association of the Company and as per the provisions of 
the Act.

(d)	 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of 
its Managing Director, Whole-time Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and any 
other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, 
the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated 
as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. 
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of 
the remuneration.

Appointment criteria and Qualifications:

(i)	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management 
level and recommend to the Board for his/ her appointment. 

(ii)	 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise 
and experience for the position he / she is considered for 
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide 
whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed 
by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned 
position.

Remuneration to Whole-time/ Executive/ Managing Director 
and KMP:

a) 	 Fixed pay:

	 The Managing Director, Whole-time Director and KMP shall 
be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved 
by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and 
quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution 
to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. 
shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the Person 

authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required. 
The remuneration of Senior Management Personnel is 
decided by the Whole-time Director.

b) 	 Minimum Remuneration:

	 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its 
profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration 
to its Managing Director and Whole-time Director in 
accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act 
and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the 
previous approval of the Central Government.

c) 	 Provisions for excess remuneration:

	 If any Whole-time Director or Managing Director draws or 
receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any 
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act 
or without the special resolution by the shareholders, where 
required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company 
and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such 
sum refundable to it unless permitted by the shareholders by 
the special resolution within two years from the date the sum 
becomes refundable.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

a) 	 Remuneration / Commission:

	 The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the 
slabs and conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association 
of the Company and the Act.

b) 	 Sitting Fees:

	 The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive 
remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 
or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees 
shall not exceeds Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board 
or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the 
Central Government from time to time.

c) 	 Commission:

	 Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved 
by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of 
the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act.

d) 	 Stock Options:

	 An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock 
option of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi 	 V.K. GUPTA
Dated: 02nd September, 2022	 CHAIRMAN 

(DIN: 00036210)
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Annexure III
(A)	 The details of the ratio of remuneration to each Director 

to the median employee’s remuneration and such other 
details as required to be given under Section 197(12) 
read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
(i)	 the ratio of the remuneration of each director to 

the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year

S. 
No.

Director Name Ratio

1 Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta 23.76 :1
2 Mr. Vivek Gupta 21.66 : 1
3 Mr. Surender Singh Bhandari*  N.A. 
4 Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma*  N.A. 

	 *Mr. Surender Singh Bhandari has resigned on 
09.08.2021 and Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma was 
appointed as a Whole Time Director w.e.f. 11.08.2021 
of the Company. As both the Directors remained in 
employment of the Company, for the part of year, 
therefore, the said ratio of remuneration of each director 
to median remuneration of the employees of the 
company is not applicable.

	 All the Non-Executive Directors of the Company were 
not paid any remuneration and were paid only sitting 
fee for attending meetings of the Board/Committees of 
directors. Therefore, the said ratio of remuneration of 
each Non-Executive Director to median remuneration of 
the employees of the company is not applicable.

(ii)	 During the financial year 2021-2022, no increment were 
made in the remuneration of any Director, CEO, CFO 
and Company Secretary.

	 All the Non-Executive Directors of the Company were 
not paid any remuneration and were paid only sitting 
fee for attending meetings of the Board/Committees of 
directors. Therefore, the said ratio of remuneration of 
each Non-Executive Director to median remuneration of 
the employees of the company is not applicable.

(iii)	 During the financial year 2021-2022, the percentage 
decrease in the median employee remuneration as 
compared to previous year was approximately 4.16%. 

(iv)	Number of permanent employees on the roll of 
company :157

(v)	 Average decrease in remuneration of employees other 
than Managerial Personnel is 1.67% and the average 
annual percentile increase in managerial remuneration 
is 1.33% due to the appointment of CFO at a higher 
remuneration during the year under review.

(vi)	 It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi 	 V.K. GUPTA
Dated: 02nd September, 2022	 CHAIRMAN 

(DIN: 00036210)

Annexure-IV

A.	 Conservation of Energy 

a)	 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 
are as under-: The Company has constantly been 
emphasizing an optimization of energy consumption 
in every possible area in its units. Continued focus on 
optimal use of power and creating awareness amongst 
all employees to prevent misuse of energy at all levels. 
All air conditioners, lights and computers are shut down 
after office hours (except at the time work commitments)

b)	 Steps undertaken by the company for utilizing 
alternate source of energy: Company is under process 
to find the alternate source of energy and evaluating the 
economic viability for installation of Solar Street Lights 
and Solar panels for Plant Lighting.

c)	 Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments: No new investment is currently under 
consideration having regard to the tenuous cash flow 
position of the Company.

B.	 Technology Absorption 

a)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption: 
Efforts for Development and Innovation for further 
improvements and product up-grading are going on.

b)	 The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution, etc.: Quality improvement, cost reduction, 
product development and better consumer satisfaction.

c)	 in case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year): No technology was imported during the 
last three years.

d)	 the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development: Nil

C.	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo- 

	 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 
during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows. 

Particulars Amounts (in Lacs)
Foreign exchange earnings 39.29

Foreign Exchange outgo 36.35

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi 	 V.K. GUPTA
Dated: 02nd September, 2022	 CHAIRMAN 

(DIN: 00036210)
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	 Annexure-V

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy
	 The Board of Directors has adopted a CSR policy to enable the Company to carry-out CSR activities in one or more than one 

activities mentioned in the Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR initiatives of the Company are mainly focused in 
education, healthcare, environment, relief, disaster management etc. and Covid-19 related activities as permitted by the law.. 
Details of the CSR policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at www.deltoncables.com.

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee:

S. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee attended 
during the year

1 Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Chairperson

1

01

2 Mr. Vivek Gupta Member 01

3 Mr. Achintya Karati Member 01

3. 	 Web-link where the following are disclosed on the website of the Company
a.	  Composition of CSR Committee 	 :https://www.deltoncables.com/composition-of-committees/

b. 	 CSR Policy :			   :https://www.deltoncables.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/CSR-Policy.pdf

c. 	 CSR Projects approved by Board	 : https://www.deltoncables.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/CSR-Policy.pdf

4. 	 Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried 	 :	Not Applicable
	 Out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
	 (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
	 if applicable(attach the report)

5. 	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance 	 :	Not Applicable

	 of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

	 Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required 

	 for set off for the financial year, if any

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 	 :	(112.68) 

7. 	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 	 :	(2.25)

		  section 135(5)

	 (b)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 	 :	Not Applicable

		  or activities of the previous financial years

	 (c)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 	 :	0

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) 	 :	(2.25)

8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 	 :	Not Applicable

Total Amount Spent 
for the financial year
(in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to

Section 135(5)
Amount Date of 

Transfer
Name of the 

Fund
Amount Date of Transfer

* During the financial year 2021-22 the Company is not required to spent any amount in CSR 
activities as there was loss in computing the average net profit for the immediately preceding 
three financial years (i.e. 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21)
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(b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022: Not applicable, since 
there is no unspent amount.

S. 
No.

Name 
of the 
Project

Item from 
the list 
activities 
in Sched-
ule VII

Local 
Area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of 
the Project

Project
Duration*
(in 
months)

Amount al-
located for 
the project

Amount
spent in 
the
current
financial 
year

Mode of
imple-
menta-
tion
- Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of
implementation
- Through
Implementing 
Agency

State District

(c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not applicable, since there is no 
unspent amount.

S. 
No.

Name 
of the 
Project

Item from 
the list 
activities 
in 
Schedule 
VII to the 
Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/ No)

Location of the 
Project

Project
Duration*
(in months)

Amount spent 
for the project

Mode of
implementation
- Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of
implementation
- Through
Implementing 
Agency

State District

(d)	 Amount spent in administrative overheads 			   :Not Applicable

(e)	 Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable		  :Not Applicable

(f)	 Total amount spent for the financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)	 :Not Applicable

(g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any				    :Not Applicable

S. No. Particulars Amount 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9.	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years 			   : Not Applicable

(b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects 			   : Not Applicable 
	 of the preceding financial year(s)

10. 	In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details 				   : Not Applicable 
	 relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two				    : Not Applicable 
	 percent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vivek Gupta 	 Vijender Kumar Gupta
	 Managing Director	 Chairperson, CSR Committee
Place: New Delhi
Date : 02nd September, 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The global economy witnessed erratic trends during the past one 
year. The economic impact of the second wave of Covid-19 was 
smaller than the impact of the first. Economic activity bounced 
back sharply in 2021, post the first COVID19 wave, supported 
by pentup demand and unprecedented policy support. However, 
two successive waves of COVID19, persistent labour market 
challenges and continuing bottlenecks in global supply chains 
that have led to inflationary pressures, have subdued the 
prospects of a broadbased economic recovery. The latter part 
of the financial year also witnessed significant rise in geopolitical 
tensions followed by sweeping sanctions and logistical 
challenges. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has slashed 
its global growth outlook for the calendar year 2022 to 3.6% from 
4.4% considering the commodity price volatility and disruption 
of supply chains which the war in Ukraine has worsened. The 
threat from new COVID19 variants, supply side pressures, rising 
inflation and the geopolitical situation will continue to weigh on 
economic recovery in the near term. However, given that a large 
part of the world population is now vaccinated, and societies 
have learnt to deal with the new normal with safety protocols in 
place, it is unlikely that the global economy will face the setback 
it saw in 2020. Concerted efforts across countries to deal with the 
fallout of the pandemic, ease supply chain bottlenecks, promote 
equitable growth and tackle the climate emergency could pave 
the way for greater economic stability.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, OUTLOOK & DEVELOPMENTS 

In India, FY22 began with the second wave of COVID19 leading 
to limited lockdowns and restricted mobility. However, the 
impact on the economy was not as severe as during the first 
wave. Construction activities continued for the better part of Q1 
and industrial activity picked up as cases subsided. Consumer 
sentiment remained positive and the economy saw a steady 
uptick from Q2FY22 onwards.

Delton Cables Limited being one of the leading manufacturer 
of cables, wires and switchgear products has responded to the 
pandemic situation with agility and adaptability. During the year 
under review, the performance of the Company is encouraging 
and achieved a net profit of Rs. 76.61 lakhs.

The cables and wires sector has been a fast-growing industry over 
the past few years. It has grown from a small industry to a large one 
during this period. The Prospects of wire and cable industry are 
interlinked with the other industries such as telecommunication, 
automotive, railway, real estate and Infrastructure Sector etc. 
with investments across different infrastructure segments in the 
background of government initiatives, the demand for cables 
is expected to increase considerably. With the growth of other 
related industries, the Indian wire and cable industry is indeed 
bound to grow and prosper.

Incremental demand of wires and cables for expansion of 
residential and commercial infrastructure has been one of the 
primary drivers of the segment. Increasing urbanization and 

commercialization is expected to further bolster investments 
in the real estate industry, thereby, driving the demand for low 
voltage insulated wires and cables

The Company is further aiming to venture into home automation 
and other wiring accessories which would help customers to 
have a one-window shopping and which will save a lot of time 
and energy in sourcing from various vendors.

OPPORTUNITY & THREATS, RISK & CONCERNS

Opportunities and Threats:

•	 Rising demand for the EHV cables with growing EPC 
infrastructure projects, where the Company faces less 
competition

•	 Government’s focus on Infrastructure developments such as 
roads, railways, ports, housing is increasing and is expected 
to create demand for electrical goods.

•	 With formalisation of economy and rising base of aspiring 
customers, the demand for branded goods and organised 
companies is increasing.

•	 Growth in the exports revenues with increasing geographical 
presence and penetration

•	 Increasing revenue share of retail segment due to its superior 
profitability

•	 Reviving demand from sectors such as metro rail, fertilizers, 
steel, cement, IT and pharmaceuticals

•	 Increasing urbanization is expected to drive the demand for 
housing sector, thereby, driving the demand of wires

•	 Structural demand for more and efficient T&D infrastructure

•	 Increasing renewable energy generation causing demand to 
rise for T&D for power evacuation

Government’s focus on Power for All, Rural Electrification, 
improving infrastructure, improved life-style has created new 
opportunities for wire and cables industry propelling the demand 
of domestic cables and wires and electrical items.

While there are plenty of opportunities, the threats on the 
way are not few either such as, Technology Changes, Capital 
expenditure, Government policies. COVID-19 too seems to have 
caused significant disruption in the industry. The worldwide 
lockdown announced by the Governments of various countries 
during the year led to the suspension of the manufacturing 
functions of all companies. Further, the global disruption of 
supply chains had an impact on the prices of raw materials, 
leading to higher production costs. However, your Company has 
systems and robust policies in place which will help in facing 
such risks and concerns. Your Company also recognizes the 
risks associated with business and takes adequate measures to 
address the associated risks and concerns.

With the Government’s focus on accelerating the vaccination 
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drive, the country is expected to fare better against future 
outbreaks of the COVID-19 pandemic, if any, than the second 
wave. This would also help the country sustain its economic 
growth. Also, as operations across various sectors head towards 
normalcy, pentup demand will drive the market for wires and 
cables. Further, the Government’s strong thrust on infrastructure 
development, and the ever-increasing capital allocation towards 
the sector in budgets, continue to boost the demand for wires 
and cables.

Risks and Concerns:

There are always a risk associated with the opportunities in the 
industry such as Slowdown in the Indian economy due to global 
developments could adversely impact growth in the short-term, 
Sharp increase in commodity prices could lead to increase in 
cost of finished goods impacting the affordability and consumer 
sentiment. , Hyper competitiveness is normal, but it becomes a 
risk in case it leads to irrational behavior in the market in terms 
of pricing and other trade practices and Deterioration in supply 
chain and demand due to pandemic such as COVID-19 have 
emerged as a significant business risk. 

The management periodically reviews the risk and suggests steps 
to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly 
defined framework. In line with the new regulatory requirements, 
the Company has formally framed a Risk Management Policy 
to identify and assess the key risk areas, to monitor and report 
compliance and effectiveness of the policy and procedure.

Financials Ratio for Annual Report of  2021-22

Key 
Financial 
Ratios

FY 
2021-22

FY 
2020-21

Variation Reasons for Change

Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio (In 
days

207 233 -11.18% The decrease in 
inventory turnover 
ratio is due to 
increased in turnover 
and efficeint holding 
of inventory in FY 
2021-22

Interest 
Coverage 
Ratio (%)

123.57% 134.75% -8.30% The decerease in 
Interest coverage 
ratio is due to lesser 
profitability on 
account of increased 
cost of input materials 
in the financial year 
2021-22

Operation 
Profit 
Ratio (%)

0.56% 1.00% -43.69% The decerease  in 
the operating profit 
ratio is due to lesser 
profitability on 
account of increased 
cost of input materials 
in the financial year 
2021-22

Key 
Financial 
Ratios

FY 
2021-22

FY 
2020-21

Variation Reasons for Change

Return on 
Net worth 
ratio (%)

1.66% 0.96% 72.36% Return on Net worth 
Ratio has increased 
due to gain on 
Remeasurement of 
defined benefit liablity 
in FY 2021-22

Net Profit 
ratio(%)

0.48% 0.51% -5.53% Net Profit ratio has 
decreased compared 
to last year as  the 
company’s profit 
has gone down due 
to increased cost of 
input materials.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a well-framed internal control system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
These internal controls ensure safeguarding of assets from 
unauthorised use or disposition, proper recording and reporting 
of all transactions and compliance with applicable regulatory 
requirements. The internal control systems are reviewed and 
modified continually to keep up with the changes in business 
environment and statutory requirements.

The framework is monitored by the internal audit team of the 
Company. The Audit Committee of the Board is periodically 
apprised of the internal audit findings. The Audit Committee 
reviews the efficacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
system, takes corrective actions and suggests measures for 
strengthening it. The Company has a robust Management 
Information which forms an integral part of the control mechanism.

ENIVRONMENT AND SAFETY 

Quality and Environment safety is of primary importance to the 
Company. It ensures that the quality control system remains 
robust and the products undergo strict quality checks. The entire 
range of products of the Company continues to remain certified 
to the requirement of International Standard ISO 9001:2015, ISO 
14001:2015 by SWISS CERT Pvt. Ltd and Health and Safety 
system has been certified to OHSAS 18001:2007.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

Human capital is the most essential part of the Company. The 
Company keeps promoting a collaborative work environment 
where all the employees feel safe and a part of the Company. 
The Human Resources policies of the Company are aimed at 
attracting, nurturing and retaining talent in a constantly evolving 
business environment while ensuring trust, transparency and 
teamwork amongst its employees.
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The Company recognizes the importance of human resources 
in realising its growth ambitions and believes in nurturing talent 
within the organization to take up leadership positions. During 
the year Company continued to maintain healthy and cordial 
relationship with its employees.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates and expectations may constitute “forward 

looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations that involve risks and uncertainties. Such statements 
represent the intention of the Management and the efforts being 
put into place by them to achieve certain goals. Actual results 
might differ materially from those either expressed or implied 
in the statement depending on the circumstances. Therefore, 
the investors are requested to make their own independent 
assessments and judgments by considering all relevant factors 
before making any investment decision.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Delton Cables Limited (the “Company”), governance’s philosophy is based on trusteeship, transparency and accountability. The 
Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate 
behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and society at large.

Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are being managed 
in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. For us, Corporate 
Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an organization’s brand and 
reputation.

We believe that an active, well-informed and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance. We firmly believe that Board independence is essential to bring objectivity and transparency in the management and 
in the dealings of the Company.

Your Company has adopted best of corporate governance practices and is based on following principles:
•	 Strong, professional, independent Board with vast knowledge and varied experience.
•	 Accountability for functioning and transparency in conduct.
•	 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
•	 Independent verification of financial reporting.
•	 Value creation and wealth maximization for stakeholders.

The Report on Corporate Governance, as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’) is given as under:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Composition of Board of Directors are in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and consists of appropriate number of Executive 
Director(s), Non-Executive Director(s) and Independent Director(s) namely Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta (Chairman and Whole-
time Director), Mr. Vivek Gupta (Managing Director and CEO), Mrs. Shalini Gupta (Non-Executive Director), Mr. Shashi Kumar 
Sharma (Whole-time Director) and Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra, Mr. Achintya Karati, Mr. Vijay Kumar Goel, Mr. Atul Aggarwal are 
Independent Director(s) of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company’s Board comprises 8 members - 3 Executive Directors and 5 Non-executive Directors 
including 4 Independent Directors.

The composition of the Board represents a healthy blend and optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience which 
enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership for long term vision and to achieve the highest 
level of governance. 

That pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board shall meet At least 4 (Four) times in a year and the time gap between 
any two Board Meeting did not exceed 120 (One Hundred and Twenty) days. 

The Board of Directors periodically reviews compliance reports pertaining to all laws applicable to the Company. All Statutory and other 
matters of significance including information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are informed to the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision of the Company. 

(A)	 Composition, Directorship And Attendance

Name Category of Directors Financial Year 2021-
22 Attendance at

No. of 
Directorships in 
other companies 

including this 
listed entity as 
on 31.3.2022*

No. of Committee 
positions held in 
other companies 

including this 
listed entity as on 

31.3.2022**
Board 

Meeting
Last AGM Listed Chairman Member

A.	Promoters
Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Executive

Chairman & Whole-time 
Director

4  Yes 2 Nil 1
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Name Category of Directors Financial Year 2021-
22 Attendance at

No. of 
Directorships in 
other companies 

including this 
listed entity as 
on 31.3.2022*

No. of Committee 
positions held in 
other companies 

including this 
listed entity as on 

31.3.2022**
Board 

Meeting
Last AGM Listed Chairman Member

Mr. Vivek Gupta Executive
Managing Director& CEO

4 Yes 3 Nil 4

Mrs. Shalini Gupta Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director

4 Yes 1 Nil Nil

B.	Non – Promoters

Mr. Mahesh Prasad 
Mehrotra***

Independent Director 4 Yes 4 3 1

Mr. Achintya Karati Independent Director 4 Yes 4 4 3

Mr. Vijay Kumar Goel Independent Director  1 No 2 Nil  Nil

Mr. Atul Aggarwal Independent Director 4 Yes 2 Nil 2

# Mr. Shashi Kumar 
Sharma

Whole-time Director 0  Yes 1 Nil Nil

	 (Data presented above is after taking into account the disclosures furnished by the Directors in the First Board Meeting for the 
Financial Year 2022-23)

	 *Directorship are reported for Listed Companies only in terms of Regulation 17A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

	 **Committee Membership/ Chairmanship are reported for Listed Companies and Unlisted Public Companies in terms of 
Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 *** Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra had resigned from the post of Non- Executive Independent director w.e.f June 14, 2022
	 # Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company, w.e.f. August 11, 2021.

	 DIRECTOSHIP IN OTHER LISTED ENTITIES AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2022

Name of Director Name of other Listed Entity Category of Directorship

Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Saneh Industrial Investments Limited Non-Executive Non Independent Director

Mr. Vivek Gupta Saneh Industrial Investments Limited Non-Executive Non Independent Director

Globus Spirits Limited Independent Director

Mrs. Shalini Gupta NIL NIL

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra Dhampur Sugar Mills Limited Independent Director

V L S Finance Limited	 Executive Director – Promoter

South Asian Enterprises Limited Non-Executive Director- Promoter

Mr. Achintya Karati Sangam (India) Limited Independent Director

J.K. Cement Limited Independent Director

Jay Bharat Maruti Limited Independent Director

Uflex Limited Independent Director

Mr. Vijay Kumar Goel Dhampur Sugar Mills Limited Chairman and Whole-time Director

Mr. Atul Aggarwal Sterling Tools Limited Executive Director – Whole Time Director

Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma NIL NIL
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(B)	 	Number of Meeting of Board of Directors held and dates on which held:

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, 4 (Four) Board Meetings were held on 09-06-2021, 11-08-2021, 11-11-2021 and 14-02-2022. 

(C)	 Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se:

	 Mr. Vivek Gupta, Managing Director & CEO on the Board of Directors is son of Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta, Chairman and Whole-
time Director of the Company.

	 Mrs. Shalini Gupta, Non-Executive Director on the Board of Director is wife of Mr. Vivek Gupta, Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company.

(D)	 Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors:- 

	 Mrs. Shalini Gupta, Non-executive non independent director on the Board of Directors of the Company holds 278151 equity 
shares of the Company.

(E)	 Web Link where details of the Familiarisation Programmes imparted to Independent directors is disclosed:

	 The Board members are provided with necessary information, documents, reports and internal policies to familiarize them with 
the Company’s procedure and practices. Up-dates on relevant statutory, regulatory changes encompassing important laws/ 
regulations applicable to the Company are duly intimated to all Directors.

	 Upon appointment, Independent Directors receive a letter of appointment, setting out in details the terms of their appointment, 
duties, roles and responsibilities.

	 The details of the familiarization programmers for independent directors are posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.
deltoncables.com

(F)	 Skills/Expertise/Competence of the Board of Directors

	 The below matrix provide the details of core skills/ expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 
context of the Company’s businesses and the said skills are available with the Board Members:

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Directors
Name of Directors Knowledge on 

Company’s Businesses, 
Policies and major 
risks, threats and 
opportunities and 
knowledge of the 

industry in which the 
Company operates

Behavioral Skills, 
attributes and 

competencies to use 
their knowledge and 
skills to contribute 

effectively to the growth 
of the Company

Business 
Strategy, 
Corporate 

Governance, 
Administration, 

Decision Making

Financial and 
Management 

Skills

Technical and 
Professional 

Skills and 
Specialized 

Knowledge in 
relations to 
Company’s 
Business.

Mr. Vijender Kumar 
Gupta 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Vivek Gupta Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mrs. Shalini Gupta Yes Yes Yes Yes --

Mr. Mahesh Prasad 
Mehrotra

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Achintya Karati Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Vijay Kumar Goel Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Atul Aggarwal Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

#Mr. Shashi Kumar 
Sharma

Yes Yes Yes -- --

	 # Mr. Shashi Kumar Sharma was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company, w.e.f. August 11, 2021.

(G)	 Confirmation of the Board

	 The Board based on the declaration submitted by the Independent Directors of the Company as a part of Annual Disclosure for 
the Financial Year 2022-23, hereby certifies that all the Independent Directors of the Company fulfills the conditions specified in 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.
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(H)	 Resignation of Independent Director

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, no Independent directors resigned from the Directorship of the Company.

	 Mr. M.P. Mehrotra had resigned from the post of Non- Executive Independent director w.e.f June 14, 2022.

	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The Power, role and Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee covers the area as contemplated under Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, besides 
other terms as referred by the Board.

	 Composition, Meeting and Attendance

	 The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The 
Committee comprises of 3 members including 2 independent directors. All members of the Committee possess financial/ 
accounting expertise/ exposure.

	 Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra, an Independent Director was the Chairman of Audit Committee and was present at the last Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 09.06.2021, 11.08.2021, 11.11.2021 and 
14.02.2022, the attendance of which are as under. The maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceeded 
One Hundred and Twenty Days. The requisite quorum was present in all meetings.

Name of Member Designation No. of Meeting(s)
Held during tenure Attended

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra* Chairman & Independent Director 4 3

Mr. Vivek Gupta Member & Executive Director 4 4

Mr. Achintya Karati** Member & Independent Director 4 4

	 * Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company, w.e.f. June 14, 2022.
	 ** Mr. Achintya Karati , Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and member of the audit committee, designated as 

Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 9th August, 2022.

	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 The Power, role and Terms of Reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee covers the area as contemplated 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, besides other terms as referred by the Board.

	 Composition, Meeting and Attendance

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The Committee comprises of 4 members including 3 independent directors. 

	 Mr. Achintya Karati, an Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee and was present at the last Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta, Chairman of the Company is a member of the Committee but does not chair 
the committee.

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held 11-08-2021, the 
attendance of which is as under. The requisite quorum was present in the meeting.

Name of Member Designation No. of Meeting(s)
Held on 

11.08.2021
Attended

Mr. Achintya Karati Chairman & Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Member & Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra* Member & Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Atul Aggarwal Member & Independent Director 1 1

	 *Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company, w.e.f. June 14, 2022.
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	 Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Director

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has laid out the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Board, its Committees and all the individual Directors are in adherence of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 The Power, role and Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee covers the area as contemplated 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, besides other terms as referred by the Board. Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra, Non-executive Independent 
Director was the Chairman of the Committee and was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.

	 Composition, Meeting and Attendance

	 Pursuant to Regulation 20 (3A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee shall meet at least once in a year.

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held on 14.02.2022. The requisite quorum was 
present during the respective meeting.

	 The Composition and attendance of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is given as under:-

Name Designation No. of Meeting(s)
Held During 
the tenure

Attended

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra* Chairman & Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Member & Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Vivek Gupta Member & Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Achintya Karati** Member & Independent Director 1 1

	 *Mr. Mahesh Prasad Mehrotra ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company, w.e.f. June 14, 2022.

	 **Mr. Achintya Karati, Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and member of the committee, designated as 
Chairman of the committee w.e.f. 9th August, 2022.

	 Compliance Officer

	 Mr. Vikas Rawat, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of the Securities Laws.

	 Redressal of Investor Grievances

	 The Status of investor Complaints received, disposed off, & pending during the Financial Year 2021-22 is as under:

Particulars Status of Investor Complaint

Number of shareholders’ complaints received 0

Number of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 0

Number of Pending Complaints 0

	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

	 There were no pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Director of the Company except for payment of sitting fee for attending 
the Board/Committee meetings.

	 The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Employees. In 
compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 rules and regulations made thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 the policy has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board. The said 
policy forms a part of Directors Report and is also available on the Company’s website www.deltoncables.com

	 The disclosures with respect to remuneration to all directors and other disclosures have been published in annual return i.e. 
MGT-7, which will be available on the website of the Company i.e.www.deltoncables.com
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	 Service Contract and Severance Fees:

•	 The remuneration of Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta (Chairman and Whole-time Director) and Mr. Vivek Gupta (Managing Director 
& CEO), as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, 
has already been approved by the shareholder of the Company in their annual general meeting held on 30.09.2019. The 
appointments of the above mentioned Directors are governed by the resolution(s) of the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
of the Company for their respective appointment/re-appointment which covers the terms & conditions of their appointment/ 
re-appointment. 

•	 Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees for attending the meetings of Board of Directors and Committee thereof.

	 Stock Option Scheme:

	 The Company does not have any Stock Option Scheme for any of its Director(s) or Employee(s).

	 SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, five meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were held on 04.06.2021, 20.07.2021, 
23.09.2021, 25.11.2021 and 17.02.2022.

	 The Composition and attendance of the Share Transfer Committee is given as under:-

Name Designation No. of Meeting(s)
Held Attended

Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Member Executive Director 05 05

Mr. Vivek Gupta Member Executive Director 05 05

	 The Minutes of the Share Transfer Committee are placed before the Board of Directors for their information.

	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (“CSR”)

	 Constitution

	 Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 as amended from time to time and schedule VII, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee comprises of three 
Directors, out of which one is Independent Director.

	 Composition and Number of Meetings held and attended by members during financial year 2021-22

	 The composition of the CSR Committee and details of attendance of meetings by members is as under:

Name Designation No. of Meeting(s)
Held During the 

Year 
Attended

Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta Chairman & Executive Director 01 01

Mr. Vivek Gupta Member &Executive Director 01 01

Mr. Achintya Karati Member &Independent Director 01 01

	 Terms of reference

	 Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include the following:

•	 To formulate and recommend a CSR strategy & CSR policy to the Board;

•	 To recommend activities to be undertaken;

•	 To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred;

•	 To review the policy from time to time;

•	 To monitor the implementation mechanism;

•	 To examine the alignment with schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013; and

•	 Any other duties and responsibilities recommended by the Board
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	 GENERAL BODY MEETING:

	 Particulars of past three Annual General Meeting (AGM) :

Year Location of AGM Date & Time Special Resolution
2018-19 Delton Hall, I.E.T.E 2, Institutional Area, 

Lodi Road, New Delhi – 110003
30.09.2019 

10:30 A.M.

1.  Approval of waiver of the recovery of remuneration 
paid to Mr. Vijender Kumar Gupta, Chairman of the 
Company during the period from 13th August, 2018 
to 31st March, 2019 

2.  Approval of waiver of the recovery of remuneration 
paid to Mr. Vivek Gupta, Managing Director & CEO 
of the Company during the period from 1st August, 
2018 to 31st March, 2019

3.  Approval of remuneration of Mr. Vijender Kumar 
Gupta, Chairman of the Company for the period 1st 
April, 2019 to 12th August, 2019.

4. Approval of remuneration of Mr. Vivek Gupta, 
Managing Director& CEO of the Company for the 
period 1st April, 2019 to 31st July, 2019.

5.  Approval of remuneration of Mr. Surender Singh 
Bhandari, Whole-time Director of the Company for 
the period 1st April, 2019 to 9th August, 2020

6.  Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Vijender Kumar 
Gupta as Chairman and Whole-time Director of the 
Company w.e.f 13th August, 2020

7.  Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Vivek Gupta as 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company w.e.f 1st August, 2020

8.  Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Achintya Karati as 
an Independent Director of the Company.

9.  Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Mahesh Prasad 
Mehrotra as an Independent Director of the 
Company.

10. Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Vijay Kumar Goel 
as an Independent Director of the Company.

11. Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Bharat Bhushan 
Chadha as an Independent Director of the Company

2019-20 Meeting was conducted through video 
conferencing (“VC”), deemed venue 
considered as Delton House,4801 , 
Bharat Ram Road, 24, Daryaganj, New 
Delhi-110002.

30.09.2020
10.30 A.M.

NIL

2020-21 Meeting was conducted through video 
conferencing (“VC”), deemed venue 
considered as Delton House, 4801 , 
Bharat Ram Road, 24, Daryaganj, New 
Delhi-110002.

30.09.2021
11.00 A.M

NIL

	 POSTAL BALLOT
A.	 No special resolution was passed through postal ballot in last year.
B.	 No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
	 The quarterly/half yearly/annual financial results are announced within the stipulated period and are generally published in 

“The Pioneer” (English and Hindi Newspaper) “The Financial Express”(English Newspaper) and “Jansatta” (Hindi Newspaper). 
The same are placed on the website of the Company i.e. www.deltoncables.com in the investor section along with all other 
shareholders information.

	 No presentation of financial results has been made to Financial Institutions/ Analysts during the Financial Year ended on 31st 
March, 2022.
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	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(a)	 Annual General Meeting
	 Date: 30thSeptember, 2022
	 Time: 10:00 a.m.
	 Mode: Video Conferencing 
	 Deemed Venue: “Delton House”, 4801, Bharat Ram Road, 24, Daryaganj, New Delhi - 110002

(b)	 Financial Year 
	 The Financial Year of the Company starts on 1st April of a year and ends on 31st March of the following year.
(c)	 Dividend Payment Date
	 The Company does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021-22 hence, not applicable.
(d)	 Listing on Stock Exchange
	 The equity shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited (BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 

001.
	 The Company has paid the listing fee to BSE for the financial year 2022-23 and annual custody fee for the financial year 

2022-23 to National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India ) Limited.
(e)	 Stock Code 
	 Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) – 504240
	 The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to Company’s share under the Depository System is 

INE872E01016

(f)	 Stock Market Data

Month BSE Limited
High Low Volume

April 2021 38.50 27.00 58,869

May 2021 52.50 37.25 1,84,341

June 2021 76.15  49.00 6,61,125

July 2021 56.45 49.10 70,541

August 2021 54.25 40.00 80,962

September 2021 46.70 39.20 44,284

October 2021 54.40 41.20 97,523

November 2021 57.55 43.05 96,810

December 2021 67.00 45.30 1,32,901

January 2022 95.10 61.65 4,11,791

February 2022 70.85 50.65 28,258

March 2022 65.35 45.20 34,231

		  (Source: BSE website)

(g)	 Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex
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(h)	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)
	 Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Limited
	 Beetal House, 3rd Floor,
	 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre,

		  Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi – 110 062
		  Telephone: 91-11- 29961281, 82 and 83
		  Fax: 91-11-29961284
		  Email: beetal@beetalfinancial.com
		  Website: www.beetalfinancial.com

(i)	 Share Transfer System
	 SEBI amended regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, prohibiting transfer of securities (except transmission or 

transposition of shares) in physical form from 1 April 2019. Further, SEBI vide its circular has fixed 31 March 2021 as the 
cut-off date for re-lodgment and that such transferred shares shall be issued only in demat mode and provided operational 
guidelines for effecting demat to the transferee’s account. Shareholders holding shares in the physical form are therefore 
requested to dematerialize their shares in their own interest. 

	 Certificate under Regulation 40 (9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2014; Compliance 
Certificate pursuant to Regulation 7(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, jointly 
signed by Compliance Officer and authorized representative of RTA certifying the compliance regarding maintenance of 
securities transfer facilities; Certificate for timely dematerialization of the shares as per SEBI (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 1996; and Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report obtained from Practicing Company Secretary have 
been duly submitted to stock exchange within stipulated time.

(j)	 Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on 31st March, 2022

S. No. Category (Shares) Holders % of Total 
Holders

Shares % of Total 
Shares

1. 1-5000 5247 92.94 567000 6.5625

2. 5001-10000  221 3.91 158160 1.8306

3. 10001-20000 84 1.48 124713 1.4434

4. 20001-30000 24 0.42 60104 0.6956

5. 30001-40000 15 0.26 51835 0.5999

6. 40001-50000 7 0.12 30517 0.3532

7. 50001-100000 16 0.28 106860 1.2368

8. 100001 and above 31 0.54 7540811 87.2779

Total 5645 100.00 8640000 100.00

	 Share Ownership Pattern as on 31st March, 2022

S.
No.

Category No. of 
Holders

No. of 
Shares held

% of shares 
held

No. of Shares 
Dematerialized

1. Promoter & Promoter Group 19 6375918 73.80 6356118

2. I. Institutions
Financial Institutions/Banks 4 2034 0.02 75

2. Central Govt/ State Govt./ President of India 0 0 0.00 0

3. Non- Institutions
Indian Public 5495 1682356 19.47 1419629

NRI 31 25986 0.30 25986

Body Corporates 32 206351 2.39 205101

Others 63 46918 0.54 46918

Investor Education and Protection Fund 1 300437 3.48 300437

Total 5645 8640000 100.00 8354264
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(k)	 Dematerialization of Securities and Liquidity

	 The equity shares of the Company are tradable in the compulsory dematerialized segment of the Stock Exchange and 
available in the depository system of National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 
As on 31st March,2022, 83,54,264 equity shares out of 86,40,000 equity shares were in a dematerialized form and the 
remaining 2,85,736 equity shares are in physical form. The Company’s share are liquid and actively traded on BSE.

(l)	 Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

	 There are no GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants outstanding as on 31st March, 2022.

(m)	Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

	 The details of exposure to foreign currency risk as on 31st March, 2022 are disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements.

(n)	 Plant Location

	 The manufacturing plant of the Company is situated at 17/4, Mathura Road, Faridabad – 121002 (Haryana).

(o)	 Address for correspondence
	 The Company Secretary
	 Delton Cables Limited 
	 Delton House, 4801, Bharat Ram Road, 24,
	 Daryaganj, New Delhi – 110002
	 Phone: 91-11-23273907
	 Email – cs@deltoncables.com / dcl@deltoncables.com

	 Address for correspondence with Registrar and Transfer Agent
	 Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited
	 Beetal House, 3rd Floor,
	 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre,
	 Near Dada HarsukhdasMandir, New Delhi – 110 062
	 Telephone: 91-11- 29961281, 82 and 83
	 Fax: 91-11-29961284
	 Email: beetal@beetalfinancial.com

(p)	 Credit Rating

	 Brickwork Rating India Private Limited has assigned BWR BB+/stable rating to the fund based (long term) facilities of the 
Company and BWR A4+ rating to the non-fund (short term) facilities of the Company during the current financial year.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(a)	 Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of 
listed entity at large

	 During the financial year 2021-22, there were no materially significant related party transactions that may have conflict with the 
interest of listed entity at large. For reference, the details of related party transactions in accordance with IND AS-24 are given 
in Note No. 38 of Notes forming part of the financial statements of the Annual Report. 

(b)	 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by stock exchange(s) or the 
Board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years;

	 No penalty or stricture has been imposed on the Company by any of the stock exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, 
in any matter related to capital markets, during the last three financial year.

	 However in the financial year 2019-20, there has been an inadvertent delay of 6 days in filing of intimation of resignation of Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) to Stock Exchange. The resignation was received and accepted on 10.07.2019 but intimation was made 
to Bombay Stock Exchange on 17.07.2019. However, no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or the Board or any other Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital market.

(c)	 Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

	 Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has in place a whistle blower policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for 
Directors and Employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees 
who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. No person was 
denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company. The detailed policy is available on the website of the Company i.e. www.
deltoncables.com. 

(d)	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements

	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015).However, the Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 
II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(e)	 Web link where policy for determining “material” subsidiaries is disclosed

	 The policy of the Company on “Material” subsidiaries is available on the website of the Company at https://www.deltoncables.
com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Material-Subsidiary-Policy.pdf

(f)	 Web link where policy for dealing with related party transactions

	 The policy of the Company on “Related Party Transactions” is available on the website of the Company at https://www.
deltoncables.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Policy-on-Materiality-of-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf

(g)	 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placements as specified 
under Regulation 32 (7A) 

	 During the year under review, the Company did not raise any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placements.

(h)	 Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice 

	 Pursuant to Part C (10) (i) of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
on the basis of written presentations/ declaration received from the Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2022, M/s 
Vaibhav Sharma and Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership No. ACS 30041, CP No. 10831), have issued a certificate 
confirming that none of the directors on the board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of Companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority

(i)	 There was no occasion of non-acceptance of any recommendation of any committee by the Board of Directors.

(j)	 Fee paid to Statutory Auditors

	 The fee paid to Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2021-22 was Rs. 12.46 lacs including other certification fee plus 
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses.

(k)	 Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

	 The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working in the office 
premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment 
that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

	 The Company has in place robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy aims at prevention of 
harassment of employees as well as contractors and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of 
sexual harassment.

	 Further disclosure required in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Nos.

Number of Complaints filed during the financial year 00

Number of Complaints disposed of during the financial year 01

Number of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year 00

	 * The Company has voluntarily inquire into the matter on the basis of letter of an employee without having any Complaint 
as per the requirement of the POSH Act and after inquiring the matter it was found that the Complaint was false and 
frivolous and disposed off accordingly.
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(l)	 Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(m)	Compliance with Code of Conduct

	 The Code of Conduct is applicable to all Directors and employees of the Company. The Company has in place Code of Conduct 
including duties of Independent Directors. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance to 
the code of conduct for the year ended on 31st March, 2022	

	 A declaration, in terms of Regulation 26 read with Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, signed by the CEO forms integral part of this report. 

(n)	 Compliance Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

	 In terms of Para E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Certificate from 
Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance forms an integral part of this report.

(o)	 Certificate from CEO and CFO

	 In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Compliance 
Certificate issued by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is annexed to this report.

(p)	 Transfer of Dividend and Corresponding Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund

	 During the Financial Year 2021 - 22, no unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares in respect of which dividend entitlements 
remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more, were pending and therefore no amount and shares were transferred 
by the Company to Investor Education and Protection Fund, pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

	 Shareholders may claim their unclaimed dividend and the corresponding shares, from the IEPF Authority by applying in the 
prescribed Form IEPF-5, which can be downloaded from the website of IEPF Authority www.iepf.gov.in.

CEO DECLARATION:
It is hereby certified that:

All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with code of conduct as laid down by the Company 
during the financial year ended on March 31, 2022

									         Sd/-
New Delhi	  Vivek Gupta
Date: 02.09.2022									        Managing Director & CEO
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BY PRATICING COMPANY SECRETARY

(Pursuant to Para E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To 
The Members
Delton Cables Limited
“Delton House”, 4801, Bharat Ram Road, 
24,Daryaganj, New Delhi – 110002

I/We have examined the compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. Delton Cables Limited (“the Company) for 
the year ended on March 31, 2022, as stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and 
E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of condition of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the 
review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance. Further my/our scope of work under this examination did not involve me/us performing audit tests for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In my/our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representation made by 
the Management, I/we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated under SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable for the year ended on March 31, 2022.

I/We further state that this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/sVaibhav Sharma & Associates

Sd/-
Vaibhav Sharma 

Practicing Company Secretaries
Place: New Delhi								        ACS No: 30041
Date: 02nd September, 2022								        C P No: 10831
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY CEO AND CFO

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Board of Directors
Delton Cables Limited

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we 
hereby certify that:

(a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2021-22 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(i)	 these statement does not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material facts or contains any statements that 
might be misleading;

(ii)	 these statement together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affair and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)	 There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year 2021-
22 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for the financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and that we have taken all necessary steps to rectify these deficiencies.

(d)	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

(i)	 significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the financial year 2021-22;

(ii)	 significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies during the financial year 2021-22 and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iii)	 instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee 
having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Vivek Gupta	 Arun Kamra
Date: 02.09.2022	 Managing Director & CEO	 CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Delton Cables Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Delton Cables Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 



39

Delton Cables Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management. 

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 	

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) 	We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) I	n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

(c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in 
equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) 	On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act.

(f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to the standalone financial statements.

(g) 	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements. 

ii. 	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. 	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv. 	 (a) 	The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) 	The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) 	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v)	 No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

2. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

For BANSAL & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. : 01113N /N500079)

Sidharth Bansal
Partner
(Membership No. 518004)
UDIN:
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Financial Statement of Delton Cables Limited 

Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the 
members of Delton Cables Limited of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delton Cables Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
control. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 
to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that: 

(1) 	Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the Company; 

(2) 	Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) 	Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are 
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subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
respect to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal control with reference 
to these financial statement criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

For BANSAL & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 01113N /N500079)

Sidharth Bansal
Partner
(Membership No. 518004)
UDIN:
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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Annexure ‘’B’’ to Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members 
of Delton Cables Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i)	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) 	 (A) 	The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) 	The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) 	The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets so to cover 
all the assets at reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year 
and were not physically verified by the Management during the year. 

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant 
and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) 	The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of-use assets) and intangible assets 
during the year. 

(e) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records of the 
Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder;

(ii)	 (a) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the management has conducted physical verification of inventory (Raw Materials and components, Stores, spares and tools, 
Finished Goods and Stock in trade) at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification 
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by the management were appropriate. No discrepancies were 
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in aggregate for each class 
of inventory mentioned above. 

(b) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore, in aggregate from banks and 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(iii) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records, the Company, 
during the year has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature 
of loans to [companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis on our examination of the records, the Company, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) 	 The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) 	We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the same.

(vii)	(a) 	The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and 
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us and based 
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on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, 
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) 	According to the information & explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the company 
there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or goods & service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or 
value added tax have not been deposited on account of disputes.

(viii)	The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) 	(a) 	The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender.

(b)	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c)	 Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d)	 The Company has not raised funds on short term basis which have been utilised for long term purpose. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable. 

(e)	 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f)	 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) 	 (a) 	The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) 	 No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of 
this report.

(c)	 As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) 	The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a)	 In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 
business. 

(b)	 We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, 
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 
requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b)	 The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial activities or Housing Financial activities. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c)	 The Company is not a core investment company. Therefore, Provisions of the clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the order is not applicable.

(d)	 There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvii)	The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in notes to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) 	There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 
(the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. 

(b) 	There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in 
compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.

(xxi)	The Company does not have any subsidiary / associate or joint venture and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xxi) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Bansal & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 01113N /N500079)

Signature
Sidharth Bansal
Partner
(Membership No.518004)
UDIN:
Place of Signature:
Date: May 27, 2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

      Note  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021

I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
a. Property, plant and equipment 3  1,035.44  1,108.46 
b. Intangible assets 4  3.94  7.89 
c. Financial assets   

 (i) Investments 5  0.19  0.33 
 (ii) Other financial assets 6  115.29  146.84 

d. Deferred tax assets (net) 8  2,093.19  2,100.4 
e. Other non-current assets 9  18.97  13.51 
Total non-current assets  3,267.02  3,377.48 
Current assets
a. Inventories 10  8,115.44  6,297.75 
b. Financial assets   

 (i) Trade receivables 11  3,494.67  3,348.13 
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12  143.41  171.72 
 (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 13  374.84  446.22 
 (iv) Other financial assets 7  137.11  104.43 

d. Other current assets 14  517.96  572.31 

Total current assets  12,783.43  10,940.56 
TOTAL ASSETS  16,050.45  14,318.05 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
Equity
a. Equity share capital 15  864.00  864.00 
b. Other equity 16  4,743.77  4,650.88 

Total equity  5,607.77  5,514.88 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 17  1,075.79  698.78 
 (ii) Other financial liabilities 21  5.00  5.00 

b. Provisions 18  112.84  119.49 
Total non-current liabilities  1,193.63  823.27 

Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 17  5,984.41  5,545.89 
 (ii) Trade payables 20   

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  628.62  198.78 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,330.08  1,905.40 

 (iii) Other financial liabilities 21  18.32  53.60 
b. Provisions 18  161.45  158.38 
c. Other current liabilities 19  116.74  100.28 
d. Current Tax Liablities (Net) 22  9.41  17.53 

Total current liabilities  9,249.03  7,979.87 
Total equity and liabilities  16,050.45  14,318.05 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Bansal & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 	 Delton Cables Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001113N/N500079
	
	
Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Siddharth Bansal	 (V.K. Gupta)	 (Vivek Gupta)
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director 
Membership No. 518004	 DIN NO: 00036210	 DIN NO: 00035916

Place : New Delhi	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date  :  May 27, 2022	 (Arun Kamra)	 (Vikas Rawat)
UDIN:22518004AJTLWE5358	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

  Note For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Income
Revenue from operations 23  15,966.27  12,316.30 
Other income 24  59.93  154.11 
Total income (I)  16,026.20  12,470.41 
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 25  13,484.83  8,980.01 
Purchases of stock in trade 26  453.55  703.80 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock 
in trade

27  (1,863.36)  (807.51)

Employee benefits expense 28  1,356.19  1,240.07 
Finance costs 29  1,036.64  827.31 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30  139.31  164.61 
Other expenses 31  1,314.01  1,239.21 
Total expenses (II)  15,921.18  12,347.49 

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I - II = III)  105.02  122.92 
Exceptional items (IV) 32  (0.08)  7.09 
Profit before tax (III-IV=V)  104.95  130.01 
Tax expense: (VI)
 - Current tax : MAT for the year  19.91  22.56 
 - Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlements)   (0.57)  46.63 
 - Income tax adjustment for earlier years  9.00  (1.51)
Total tax expense  28.34  67.68 

 Profit for the year (V-VI= VII)  76.61  62.32 
Other comprehensive income / (expense) (VIII)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability  23.00  (13.49)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 
and loss
‘- Income tax relating to remeasurements of defined benefit liability  (6.69)  4.17 
Total other comprehensive income / loss for the year (VIII)  16.28  (9.32)

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year (VII + VIII = IX)  92.89  53.00 
Earnings per equity share

1. Basic  0.89  0.72 
2. Diluted  0.89  0.72 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Bansal & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 	 Delton Cables Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001113N/N500079
	
	
Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Siddharth Bansal	 (V.K. Gupta)	 (Vivek Gupta)
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director 
Membership No. 518004	 DIN NO: 00036210	 DIN NO: 00035916

Place : New Delhi	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date  :  May 27, 2022	 (Arun Kamra)	 (Vikas Rawat)
UDIN:22518004AJTLWE5358	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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 Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

 Particulars Notes  Year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Cash flow from operating activities  
  Profit before tax  104.95  130.01 
Adjustments for:  
  Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30  139.31  164.61 
  Loss/(Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 32  (0.06)  (7.09)
  Loss on disposal of Investment 32  0.14  - 
  Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 11  -  7.00 
  Foreign exchange loss/(gain) on translation 31  0.31  11.93 
  (Profit) on revaluation of investment 24  (2.29)  (9.92)
  Adjustment to property, plant and equipment 3  0.45  - 
  Interest income classified as investing cash flows 24  (39.71)  (51.89)
  Finance costs 29  1,036.64  827.31 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities  
  Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 11  (146.54)  (761.56)
  (Decrease)/increase in trade payables 20  854.21  (264.65)
  Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets 6  0.78  182.68 
  (Increase) / decrease in other non - current assets 9  (5.46)  (9.44)
  (Increase) / decrease in inventories 10  (1,817.69)  (628.43)
  (Increase) / decrease in other current assets 14  54.34  47.47 
  Increase / (decrease) in provisions 18  19.38  12.19 
  Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 21  (59.28)  192.85 
  Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 19  16.48  (688.45)
Cash generated from operations    155.98  (845.38)
  Income tax paid    (35.89)  (0.63)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities    120.09  (846.01)
Cash flows from investing activities      
  Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 3  (70.11)  (256.59)
  Payment for acquisition of intangible assets 4  (0.00)  (0.66)
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3  7.38  18.52 
  Fixed deposits 13  (5.61)  14.54 
   Interest income 24  39.71  51.89 
Net cash inflow from investing activities    (28.63)  (172.29)
Cash flows from financing activities  
  Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings 17  377.01  125.02 
  Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings 17  438.51  1,244.93 
  (Payment) of lease liability  24.00  51.54 
  Interest and other borrowing costs paid 29  (1,036.64)  (827.31)
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities    (197.12)  594.18 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (105.66)  (424.12)
  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  616.83  1,040.95 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    511.17  616.83 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement      
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following      
Cash on hand  11.12  17.99 
Balances with banks 12  1.60  25.52 
Deposits with maturity of less than three months  130.71  128.21 
Deposits with banks with maturity period of more than twelve months 6  1.91  10.40 
Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than three month but upto twelve months 13  365.83  434.71 
Cash and cash equivalents  511.17  616.83 
Balance as per statement of cash flows    511.17  616.83 

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes	
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Bansal & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 	 Delton Cables Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001113N/N500079
	
	
Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Siddharth Bansal	 (V.K. Gupta)	 (Vivek Gupta)
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director 
Membership No. 518004	 DIN NO: 00036210	 DIN NO: 00035916

Place : New Delhi	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date  :  May 27, 2022	 (Arun Kamra)	 (Vikas Rawat)
UDIN:22518004AJTLWE5358	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

A	 Equity share capital

Particulars Note Amount

Balance as at 31 March 2021  86.40 

Changes in share capital during 2020-21 15  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2022    86.40 

B	 Other equity

Particulars Note  Reserves and surplus Total 

Capital 
reserve

Securities 
premium 
account

Retained 
earnings/ 

Surplus in 
Statement of 
Profit or loss

General  
reserve

Balance at 31 March 2021  16  12.70  33.18  4,540.47  64.53  4,650.88 

Profit for the year    76.75  76.75 

Other comprehensive income /(loss) for the 
year 

   16.28  16.28 

Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the 
year 

   -    -    93.03  -    93.03 

Balance at 31 March 2022    12.70  33.18  4,633.50  64.53  4,743.90 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Bansal & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 	 Delton Cables Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001113N/N500079
	
	
Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Siddharth Bansal	 (V.K. Gupta)	 (Vivek Gupta)
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director 
Membership No. 518004	 DIN NO: 00036210	 DIN NO: 00035916

Place : New Delhi	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date  :  May 27, 2022	 (Arun Kamra)	 (Vikas Rawat)
UDIN:22518004AJTLWE5358	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

1	 Company Information / Overview

	 Delton Cables Limited is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act,1956. In India its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company has its manufacturing unit at Faridabad. The 
company is engaged in manufacturing and supplying of wires, cables and switchgears. Delton is a prime supplier to the Power, 
Telecommunication, Railways, Steel and Mining sectors in India and in the International market also.

2.a	 Basis of preparation

(i)	 Statement of compliance

	 These Standalone financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared to comply in all material aspects 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27th May 2022.

(ii)	 Basis of measurement

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) on accrual 
and going concern basis and the historical cost convention except for certain financial assets, financial liabilities and 
certain other items which have been measured at fair value as required under the relevant Ind AS, the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI), Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

	 Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(iii)	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

	 In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

	 Information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

- 	 measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

- 	 judgement required to ascertain lease classification.

- 	 measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment.

- 	 fair value measurement of financial instruments.

 -	 judgement required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets.

- 	 impairment of trade receivables

-	  other estimate items determined 

	 There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 
within the next financial year.

2.b	 Significant accounting policies

	 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.



51

Delton Cables Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
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(i)	 Current - non-current classification

	 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

	 Assets	

	 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

• 	 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

• 	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

•	 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

•	  it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period.

	 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current. 

	 Liabilities

	 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

•	  it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

• 	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

• 	 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

•	 the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

	 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 Operating cycle	

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 
months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non- current.

(ii)	 Foreign currency transactions and translations

	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates 
i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (Rs.). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which 
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs upto two 
decimal places, unless otherwise stated.

	 Transactions and Balances

	 Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency of the 
Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions or at an average rate if the average rate approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

	 Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the rates of 
exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of foreign exchange 
transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.
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	 Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on net basis. However, foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency 
monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, within finance costs. 

(iii)	 Fair value measurement

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

• 	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• 	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

• 	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

	 The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments , at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair 
value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost is disclosed in Notes.

(iv)	 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

	 Financial assets

	 Recognition and initial measurement

	 All financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.	

	 Classification and subsequent measurement

	 Classification

	 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial assets in following categories:

• 	 Financial assets at amortised cost	

• 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

• 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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	 A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

• 	 The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and

• 	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments 
of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

	 A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

• 	 The asset is held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets, and 

• 	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the 
principal amount outstanding.

	 A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.

	 All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at 
FVTPL.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial assets at amortised cost

	 These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost 
is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

	 Financial assets at FVTPL

	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Derecognition

	 The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

	 The Company makes allowance for doubtful trade receivable and contract assets using simplified approach , 
significant judgement is used to estimate doubtful accounts as prescribed in IND AS 109 . In estimating doubtful 
accounts historical and anticipated customer performance are considered. Changes in the economy, industry, or 
specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts recorded in financial 
statements. This is done on the basis of company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period.	

	 Write-off

	 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty does 
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply 
with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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	 Financial liabilities

	 Recognition and initial measurement

	 All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability. 

	 Classification and subsequent measurement

	 Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. 

	 A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 
is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Derecognition

	 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

	 The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified 
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is recognised at fair 
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability 
with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only 
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them 
on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(vi)	 Share capital

	 Equity share capital

	 Issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to 
the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(vii)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(viii)	Property, plant and equipment

	 Recognition and measurement

	 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

	 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price, including import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management.

	 If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for 
as separate component of property, plant and equipment.
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	 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of property, plant and equipment) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when property, plant and equipment 
is derecognised. The carrying amount of any component accounted as a separate component is derecognised, when 
replaced or when the property, plant and equipment to which the component relates gets derecognised. 

	 Subsequent costs

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and 
Loss at the time of incurrence.

	 Depreciation 

	 Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values and 
is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided on straight-line 
method at the rates and in the manner provided in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.	

	 Depreciation has been charged based on the following useful lives:

Asset Head Useful life in years

Factory Buildings 10-30

Plant and Machinery 15

Furniture & fixtures 10

Office Equipment 5-6

Vehicles 8-10

	 The useful lives have been determined based on internal evaluation done by management and are in line with the 
estimated useful lives, to the extent prescribed by the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the 
technological obsolescence and actual usage of the asset. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original 
cost of the asset.

	 Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

	 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed by 
management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

	 Capital work-in-progress

	 Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-
progress.

(ix)	 Investment Property

	 Property that is held for Long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 
Group, is classified as Investment Property. Investment Property is measured initially at its cost, including related 
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying 
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed when 
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

	 Investment Properties are depreciated using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The useful life 
has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.



56

Delton Cables Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

(x)	 Intangible Assets

	 Recognition and measurement

	 Other intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. 
The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and 
installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

	 Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an other intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Particulars Useful life in years

Goodwill 10

Brands/Trademarks 10

Computer Software 4

	 Subsequent costs	

	 Subsequent costs is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as 
incurred.

	 Amortisation

	 Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 3 years 
using the straight-line method. Amortisation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/ disposed during 
the year.

	 Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, 
if appropriate.

	 Intangible assets under development

	 Cost of intangible assets under development as at the reporting date are disclosed as intangible assets under 
development.

(xi)	 Leases

i. 	 As a lessee

	 The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate 
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which 
it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-use 
asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful life of right-of-use asset is determined on the same 
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments from a change 
in an index or rate. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
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	 carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The Company presents right-of-use asset that do not meet the definition 
of investment property as a separate line item and lease liabilities in “other financial liabilities” in the Balance 
Sheet. The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less, leases of low value assets and leases with no written agreement. 
The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

ii. 	 As a lessor

	 When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or 
an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease 
transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of the underlying asset. If this is 
the case, then the lease is a finance lease, if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of the assessment, the 
Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the 
asset. If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 “Revenue 
from contract with customers” to allocate the consideration in the contract. The Company recognizes lease 
payments received under operating lease as income on a straight line basis over the lease term as part of “Other 
Income”.

(xii)	 Inventories

	 Raw Materials, Components, Loose Tools, Stores and Spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a 
weighted average basis.

	 Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is 
determined on a weighted average basis.

	 Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average 
basis.

(xiii)	Impairment - non-financial assets

	 At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating 
units (CGUs).

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value 
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment 
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(xiv)	Employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an undiscounted amount expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
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	 Post-employment benefit plans

	 Defined contribution plans

	 The Company pays provident fund contributions to the appropriate government authorities. The Company has no 
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined 
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are due.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 Defined benefit plans of the Company comprise gratuity.

	 The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. 
The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on 
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. 
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The gratuity plan of the Company is unfunded.

	 The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by actuary 
using the projected unit credit method.

	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to 
the terms of the related obligation.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. 
This cost and other costs are included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in “other 
equity” in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from settlement or curtailments are recognised 
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

	 Other long-term employee benefits

i. 	 Compensated absences

	 Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months is treated as a short-term employee 
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to 
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

	 Accordingly, benefits under compensated expenses are accounted as other long-term employee benefits. The 
Company’s net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
arise.

ii. 	 Others

	 The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is 
the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the current 
and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on 
the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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(xv)	 Provisions and contingent liabilities and assets

	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liabilities and assets

	 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic 
benefits is remote.	

	 Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

(xvi)	Revenue recognition

	 The Company earns revenue primarily from selling of Cables and switchgear items

	 Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. The 
Company recognizes revenue on satisfaction of the performance obligation by transferring the promised goods and 
services mentioned in the contracts with the customers.

	 Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, 
performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. 
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

	 The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied at point in time after satisfaction of the 
performance obligation. In case where the outcome of a performance obligation cannot be reasonably measured 
but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the revenue is being 
recognized only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the 
performance obligation.

	 The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by nature of goods and service. 

	 Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets 
are classified as unbilled revenue (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, 
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

	 Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billing in excess of revenues.

	 Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest rate 
method.

	 Export Benefits	

	 Export entitlements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms 
of the scheme is established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

(xvii)	Expenditure

	 Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.
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(xviii)	Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of 
the asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. Other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(xix)	Income tax

	 Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

	 Current tax

	 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax 
amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any relating to income taxes. It is measured 
using tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the 
related tax benefit will be realised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred 
tax asset.

	 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is 
settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

	 The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company 
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

	 Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as a 
deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future 
income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the 
extent allowed in the year in which the Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax asset in Balance 
Sheet. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

(xx)	 Earnings per share

	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. 

	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

	 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, which comprise convertible preference 
shares and share options granted to employees.
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(xxi)	Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and 
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

(xxii)	Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below: 

	 Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework 

	 The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting under Indian  Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India at the acquisition date. These  changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company 
does not expect the amendment to have any impact in its financial statements. 

	 Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use 

	 The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received 
from selling  items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise 
such sales proceeds and  related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact 
in its recognition of its property, plant and  equipment in its financial statements. 

	 Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 

	 The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. 
Costs that relate  directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation  of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a 
clarification and the Company does not expect the  amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

	 Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

	 The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing 
whether to  derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements. 

	 Ind AS 106 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

	 The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve 
any potential  confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements. 
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3.	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Particulars  Freehold 
Land 

 Building  Plant and 
machinery 

 Furniture 
and 

fixtures 

 Office 
equipment 

 Right 
to use 
Asset 

 Vehicles Computers 
and Other 
IT Assets 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021  7.83  373.20  1,325.51  43.33  39.70  120.08  368.59  47.38  2,325.62 

Additions during the year  -    -    48.61  0.49  16.87  -    -    4.14  70.10 

Disposals during the year  -    -    (3.90)  (2.87)  -    (19.89)  (0.39)  (27.05)

Adjustment  -    (9.09)  2.58  (0.38)  (0.27)  -    -    -    (7.16)

Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2022  7.83  364.11  1,372.80  43.44  53.43  120.08  348.70  51.13  2,361.51 

Accumulated depreciation  

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021  -    (157.29)  (757.59)  (16.34)  (20.58)  (99.82)  (137.39)  (28.15)  (1,217.16)

Depreciation for the year 21-22  -    (6.14)  (53.75)  (2.83)  (7.30)  (20.26)  (35.61)  (9.48)  (135.36)

Depreciation on disposals  -    -    0.45  -    0.32  -    18.89  0.07  19.73 

Adjustment  (0.43)  (3.46)  0.35  3.10  7.16  (0.00)  6.72 

Accumulated depreciation  as at 31 March 
2022 

 -    (163.86)  (814.34)  (18.82)  (24.46)  (120.08)  (146.94)  (37.56)  (1,326.07)

Net carrying value

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022  7.83  200.24  558.45  24.62  28.97  -    201.75  13.57  1,035.44 

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021  7.83  215.91  567.92  26.99  19.12  20.26  231.20  19.23  1,108.46 

Notes:
1	 Title deed of Immovable Property namely Freehold Land at Faridabad is held in name of the Company 
2	 There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
3	 There have been no revaluation of  Property, plant and equipment during financial year 2021-22 or 2020-21

4.	 Intangible assets
A	 Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Goodwill Computer 
Software

Total

Gross carrying Balance as at 31 March 2021  70.00  89.74  159.74 

Additions during the year  -    -    -   

Disposals during the year  -    -    -   

Balance as at 31 March 2022  70.00  89.74  159.74 

Accumulated depreciation  as at 31 March 2021  (70.00)  (81.86)  (151.86)

Amortisation for the year  -    (3.95)  (3.95)

Disposals during the year  -    -    -   

Balance at 31 March 2022  (70.00)  (85.81)  (155.81)

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022  -    3.94  3.94 

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021  -    7.89  7.89 

	 There have been no revaluation of Intangible assets during financial year 2021-22 or 2020-21
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5.	 Investments
	 Financial assets (non-current)- Investments

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Unquoted equity shares

Investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity investments, unquoted

"50  Shares of `10 each fully paid-up of Industrial Cables (I) Ltd 
(March 31 2022: 50 Shares, March 31 2021: 50 Shares)"

 0.00  0.00 

2,500  Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up of Maruti Ltd (March 31 2022: Nil, March 31 
2021: 2,500 Shares)

 -    0.14 

20,000  Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up of Orient Fabrtex Ltd. (31 March 2022: 
20,000 Shares, 31 March 2021: 20,000 Shares)

 0.11  0.11 

233  Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up of Incab Industries Ltd (March 31 2022 : 233 
Shares, March 31 2021 : 233 Shares)

 0.03  0.03 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment  0.15  0.29 

Investment in Government Securities

Unquoted

12 years National Defence Certificate (Since matured, pledged as security with 
Central Excise Department) 

 0.03  0.03 

Aggregate amount of investment in Government Securities  0.03  0.03 

TOTAL Non-Current Investment  0.19  0.33 

6.&7Other financial assets

Particulars
 

As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Non current Current Non current Current

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:

Deposits with banks with maturity period of more than twelve 
months

 1.91  -    10.40  -   

Advance recoverable    

 - Considered good  -    134.37  -    101.69 

Insurance Policies  53.86  -    46.41  -   

Security deposits  59.52  2.74  90.03  2.74 

Total  115.29  137.11  146.84  104.43 

	 No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under 
Companies Act, 2013).
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8.	 Income taxes

A.	 Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Current tax (a)
Current period - MAT for the year  19.91  22.56 

Taxes for earlier years  9.00  (1.51)

Deferred tax (b)  

Attributable to–

Property, plant and equipment  26.13  0.42 

Impact of expenditure charged but allowed for tax purposes on payment 
basis

 (1.97)  3.29 

Provisions - employee benefits  (3.68)  (1.70)

Allowance for credit losses on trade receivable  (0.00)  (5.82)

Allowance for credit losses on security deposits  -    0.79 

MAT credit entitlements  (19.91)  43.52 

Borrowings  -    3.18 

Other items  -   

Discounting  of security deposit -  -   

Tax losses carried forward  0.00  2.95 

   0.57  46.63 

Tax expense  29.47  67.68 

B.	 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021

Before 
tax

Tax 
(expense) 

benefit

Net of 
tax

Before 
tax

Tax 
(expense) 

benefit

Net of tax

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 
(asset)

 22.96  (6.69)  16.28  (13.49)  4.17  (9.32)

   22.96  (6.69)  16.28  (13.49)  4.17  (9.32)

C.	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Profit/ (loss) before tax    104.95  130.01 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 29.12%  30.56 29.12%  37.86 

Effect of:

Taxes for earlier years 8.57%  9.00 -1.16%  (1.51)

Other adjustments including MAT -10.69%  (11.22) 24.10%  31.33 

Effective tax rate 27.00%  28.33 52.06%  67.68 
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D.	 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Particulars Deferred tax (assets) Deferred tax liabilities Net deferred tax (asset) 
liabilities

For the 
year ended 
31 March 

2022

For the 
year ended 
31 March 

2021

For the 
year ended 
31 March 

2022

For the year 
ended 31 

March 2021

For the year 
ended 31 

March 2022

For the 
year ended 
31 March 

2021

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    55.38  29  (55.38)  (29.25)

Impact of expenditure charged but allowed for 
tax purposes on payment basis

 8.96  6.99  -    -    8.96  6.99 

Provisions - employee benefits  70.91  73.92  -    -    70.91  73.92 

Allowance for credit losses on trade receivable  11.89  11.89  -    -    11.89  11.89 

MAT credit entitlements  1,016.41  996.50  -    -    1,016.41  996.50 

Tax losses carried forward  1,040.39  1,040.39  -    -    1,040.39  1,040.39 

Deferred tax (assets) liabilities  2,148.57  2,129.69  55.38  -    2,093.19  2,100.44 

Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities

 (55.38)  (29.25)  (55.38)  -   -  -   

Net deferred tax (assets) liabilities  2,093.19  2,100.44  -    -    2,093.19  2,100.44 

	 Movement in temporary differences

 Particulars Balance 
as at  

31 March 
2021

Recognised 
in profit or 
loss during 

2021-22

Recognised 
in equity 

during 2021-
22

Recognised 
in OCI 
during 

2021-22

Balance 
as at 31 

March 2022

Property, plant and equipment  29.25  26.13  -    -    55.38 

Impact of expenditure charged but allowed for tax purposes on 
payment basis

 (6.99)  (1.97)  -    -    (8.96)

Provisions - employee benefits  (73.92)  (3.68)  -    6.69  (70.91)

Allowance for credit losses on trade receivable  (11.89)  (0.00)  -    -    (11.89)

Allowance for credit losses on security deposits  -    -    -    -    -   

MAT credit entitlements  (996.50)  (19.91)  -    -    (1,016.41)

Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   

Tax losses carried forward  (1,040.39)  0.00  -    -    (1,040.39)

   (2,100.44)  0.57  -    6.69  (2,093.19)
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9.	 Other non-current assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Prepaid expenses  18.97  13.51 

Total  18.97  13.51 

10.	 Inventories

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Raw materials and components  958.42  1,037.76 

Stores, spares and tools  286.28  252.60 

Work-in-progress  3,780.34  2,685.20 

Finished goods  2,783.95  2,014.72 

Stock-in-trade  144.05  165.15 

Scrap  162.40  142.31 

Total  8,115.44  6,297.75 

11.	 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

 A  Trade Receivables 

(a) Receivables considered good - Secured  3,249.16  3,091.70 

(b) Receivables considered good - Unsecured - -

(c) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  245.51  256.43 

(d) Receivables credit impaired  40.85  40.85 

Sub Total (A)  3,535.52  3,388.98 

Allowance for Impairment loss  (B)  40.85  40.85 

 Total (A-B)  3,494.67  3,348.13 

Current portion  3,494.67  3,348.13 

Non Current portion  -    -   

	 The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment allowances related to trade receivables is disclosed in 
Note 33. 

	 Trade receviables ageing schedule 31.03.2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
-1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  2,812.08  118.48  153.87  28.72  136.01 3,249.16 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good  -  1.98  49.92  44.44  149.17  245.51 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase in credit 
risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  40.85  40.85 
Total  2,812.08  120.46  203.79  73.16  326.03 3,535.52 
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	 Trade receviables ageing schedule 31.03.2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
-1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 
good

 2,698.62  106.71  116.69  111.76  57.92  3,091.70 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good  27.85  28.60  50.79  12.28  136.91  256.43 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  40.85  40.85 

Total  2,726.47  135.31  167.48  124.04  235.68  3,388.98 

12.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Cash on hand  11.10  17.99 

Balances with banks

 - in current accounts  1.60  25.52 

Deposits with maturity of less than three months *  130.71  128.21 

Total  143.41  171.72 

	 There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior 
periods.

	 *Bank Deposits amounting to Rs.130.71 ( March 31, 2021:  Rs.128.21 lac)  are pledged with banks and government authorities.

13.	 Other bank balances

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than three month but upto twelve 
months*

 365.83  434.71 

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits  9.01  11.51 

Total  374.84  446.22 

	 *Bank Deposits amounting to Rs.365.83 ( March 31, 2021:  Rs.434.71 lac)  are pledged with banks and government authorities.
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14.	 Other current assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated

Capital advances

Advance to Vendors  7.83  41.56 

Other than capital advances

Prepaid expenses  84.23  82.70 

Balances with government authorities  388.73  428.34 

Advances to employees  37.17  19.71 

Total  517.96  572.31 

15	 Equity share capital

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Authorised :    

94,00,000 (31 March 2021 : 94,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each  940.00  940.00 

40,000 (31 March 2021 : 40,000) Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of 
Rs.10 each

 40.00  40.00 

20,000 (31 March 2021 : 20,000) Redeemable Cumulative  Preference Shares of 
Rs.10 each

 20.00  20.00 

1000.00 1000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up:

86,40,000 (31 March 2021 : 86,40,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up.  864.00  864.00 

 864.00  864.00 

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of 
the reporting period :

Equity share :

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  864.00  864.00 

Equity shares allotted  -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  864.00  864.00 

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. During the  year ended Mar 31, 2022, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity 
shareholders is ` Nil (March 31, 2021:  ` Nil).

The Comnpany has no holding, subsdiary, associate or joint venture

The Company has not issued bonus shares, bought back shares or issued shares for consideration other than cash during the 
period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

The Company has not declared dividend in the financial year 2021-22 and 2020-21.
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(ii)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Number of 
shares

%  
holding

Number of 
shares

%  
holding

Equity shares:

(i) Vishranti Trading Enterprises Ltd. 2805501 32.47% 2805501 32.47%

(ii) Delton Cable Company 1107450 12.82% 1107450 12.82%

	 The Comnpany has no holding, subsdiary, associate or joint venture

(iii)	 Details of Shareholding of promoter & promoters Group.

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Number of 
shares

%  
holding

Number of 
shares

%  
holding

Vishranti Trading Enterprises Ltd 2805501  32.47 2805501  32.47 

Vijendra Kumar Gupta 807831  9.35 807831  9.35 

V.K. Gupta (HUF) 497949  5.76 497949  5.76 

Delton International Limited 401850  4.65 401850  4.65 

Ram Kumar Gupta And Sons Limited 355035  4.11 355035  4.11 

Vivek Gupta 293328  3.40 293328  3.40 

B And M Trading And Investment Co Ltd 283029  3.28 283029  3.28 

Shalini Gupta 278151  3.22 278151  3.22 

Saneh Industrial Investments Ltd 273450  3.16 273450  3.16 

Vivek Gupta (HUF) 138477  1.60 138477  1.60 

Veena Gupta 98928  1.15 98928  1.15 

Deepti Sen Gupta 38850  0.45 38850  0.45 

Shriya Gupta 30000  0.35 30000  0.35 

Chitra Chaudhry 29850  0.34 29850  0.34 

Sushil Prakash Chaudhry 19839  0.23 19839  0.23 

Rahul Chaudhary 18000  0.21 18000  0.21 

Shuchi Chaudhry 3150  0.04 3150  0.04 

Abha Gupta 2400  0.03 2400  0.03 

Maya Karati 300  0.00 300  0.00 

Total  63,75,918  73.80  63,75,918  73.80 
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16	 Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Capital reserve 12.70 12.70

Securities premium reserve 33.18 33.18

General reserve 64.53 64.53

Retained earnings 4633.37 4540.48

Balance at the end of the year 4743.77 4650.89

(i) Securities premium reserve

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year  33.18 33.18

Premium received during the year on account of issue of shares  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  33.18  33.18 

(ii) General reserve

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 64.53 64.53

Amount transferred during the year  -  - 

Appropriations during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year 64.53 64.53

(iii) Retained earnings

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year  4,540.48  4,487.48 

Net profit/(loss) for the year  76.61  62.32 

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax  16.28  (9.32)

Balance at the end of the year  4,633.37  4,540.48 
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	 Nature and purpose of other reserves

	 Securities premium reserve

	 Securities Premium reserve represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities (equity shares). The reserve is 
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 General reserve

	 General reserve represents the statutory reserve created in accordance with Indian Corporate law, wherein a portion of profit is 
required to be apportioned to such reserve. Under the Companies Act, 1956, it was mandatory to transfer a required amount to 
general reserve before a company could declare dividend, however, under the Companies Act, 2013, the transfer of any amount 
to general reserve is at the discretion of the Company.

	 Retained earnings

	 Retained earnings represent the undistributed profits of the Company.

17.	 Borrowings

Particulars Non current Current 

As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Term loan:

Secured bank loans

-  Loan in indian currency  676.93  199.07  144.57  178.38 

Secured loan from Financial Institutions  

- Vehicle Loan in indian currency  5.47  24.47  19.00  15.54 

Unsecured loan from Financial Institutions

- Term Loan in indian currency  393.39  475.24  77.64  58.50 

Working capital demand loan from bank  -    -    1,152.00  1,152.00 

Cash Credit Facility from Bank  -    -    2,002.89  1,930.32 

LC Discounting  -    -    294.77  687.07 

Loan from Banks  -    -    497.59  495.82 

Loan from fianancial institutions  -    -    1,493.70  1,028.26 

Other Borrowings  -    -    302.25  -   

   1,075.79  698.78  5,984.41  5,545.89 

Total  1,075.79  698.78  5,984.41  5,545.89 
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Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2020

Rate of 
Interest

 Repayment Terms 

GECL from Canara Bank  487.22  100.00 7.50% to 
7.65% p.a

36 Equal Monthly installment after 
moratorium of  12 month 

GECL from Punjab National Bank  166.70  39.05 7.65% p.a
Covid Loan from Canara Bank  42.68  170.70 8.05% p.a 18 Equal Monthly installments  after 

moratorium of 6 month from date  of 
disburshment. 

Covid Loan from PNB  14.90  60.96 7.60% p.a

FITL From PNB  12.24  6.73 10.50% 
- 11.95% 

p.a.

3 Equal Monthly installment 

Vehicle Loan from Toyata Finance  
Limited

 12.24  20.01 9.85% p.a 60 Equal Monthly installments of  
Rs. 78,345/- from September 2018. 

Vehicle Loan from Toyata Finance  
Limited

 -    20.01 9.85% p.a 60 Equal Monthly installments of  
Rs. 78,345/- from September 2018. 

Indian Rupee Term Loan from 
Shriram City Union Finance Limited 
(Refer Foot Note (ii) )

 471.03  533.74 11.50% 
p.a.

117 Equal Monthly installments of 
Rs. 10,49,527/- starting from July 
2017 

GECL Loan from Shriram City Union 
Finance Limited

 110.00  -   11.50% pa 48 Equal Monthly installments of Rs.  
3,62,736/- starting from August 2022 

Working Capital Demand loan from 
Bank Consortium consisting of 
Canara Bank (Lead Bank), Punjab 
National Bank and Federal Bank

 1,152.00  1,152.00 10.50% 
- 11.95% 

p.a.

Cash credit facilities from Bank 
Consortium consisting of Canara 
Bank (Lead Bank), Punjab National 
Bank and Federal Bank

 2,002.89  1,930.32 10.50% 
- 11.95% 

p.a.

Repayable on Demand 

Buyer's credit facilities and LC 
discounting facility from Bank 
Consortium consisting of Canara 
Bank (Lead Bank), Punjab National 
Bank and Federal Bank

 294.77  687.07 4.65 
-  4.75 % 

p.a.

Repayable on Demand 

Financial Limit against Raw Material 
Assistance Scheme from National 
Small Industries Corporation Ltd.

 497.59  495.82 9.0 % p.a. Repayable on Demand 

Channel/ Purchase  Finance from 
Aditya Birla Finance Limited

 1,493.70  1,028.26 9.5% p.a. Repayable on Demand 

Unsecured loan from promoters  302.25  -    10% p.a 12 Equal Monthly installments of Rs. 
26,37,477 starting from April 2022. 

(i)	 Vehicle Loans are secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles.
(ii)	 The loan together with interest and other charges thereon are secured against mortgage of immovable property of promoters 

situated at 4801, Block-24, Bharat Ram Road ,Daryaganj,New Delhi-110002 and personal guarantee of directors.
(iii) 	Cash Credit,working capital demand loan, Letter of Credit and  buyers credit are secured by pari passu charge under 

consortium arrangement by way of first charge on whole of movable properties, excluding such movable which has been 
permitted by the banks and including inventories & book debts of the company & equitable mortgage created on the 
properties at 17/4, Mathura Road, Faridabad & personal guarantee of the directors.

(iv) 	Loan from Banks and financial institutions are secured against the personal gaurantee of directors
(v) 	 The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.
(vi) 	The statements of book debts and inventory filed by the Company with banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the 

books of accounts.

(vii) 	Borrowings from Banks / financial institutions have been utilized for specific purpose for which it was taken.
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18.	 Provisions

Particulars
 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Provisions for employee benefits

Compensated absences  6.38  24.40  19.26  4.76 

Gratuity  106.47  137.05  100.23  153.62 

   112.84  161.45  119.49  158.38 

19.	 Other liabilities

Particulars
 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Non current Current Non-current Current

Statutory dues payables  -    32.10  -    20.49 

Contract Liability  -    34.91  -    30.32 

Other payables  -    49.73  -    49.47 

Total  -  116.74  -  100.28 

20	  Trade payables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

628.62 198.78

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

2,330.08 1,905.40

Total   2,958.70   2,104.18

	 The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 33.

	 Trade payable ageing schedule 31-Mar-22

Particulars
 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

(i) MSME  595.55  33.07  -  -  628.62 

(ii) Others  2,187.93  26.45  11.19  93.87  2,319.44 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -  -  10.64  -  10.64 

   2,783.48  59.52  21.83  93.87  2,958.70 
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	 Trade payable ageing schedule 31-Mar-21

Particulars
 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

(i) MSME  198.78  -  -  -  198.78 

(ii) Others  1,650.72  46.87  20.76  176.41  1,894.76 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -  -  10.64  -  10.64 

   1,849.50  46.87  31.40  176.41  2,104.18 

21	  Other financial liabilities

Particulars
 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Non current Current Non-current Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    18.32  -    31.58 

Security deposits*  5.00  -    5.00  -   

Lease Liablity  -    -    -    22.02 

Total  5.00  18.32  5.00  53.60 

	 *Security Deposit from dealers are from before 31.03.2008, carries an interest @ 7% p.a. and repayable on cessation of business 
transactions with such dealer.

22.	 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Current Current

Provision for income tax (net)* 9.41 17.5

Total 9.41 17.5

	 * Provisions for Current Tax Liablities has been calculated net of Advance Tax of Rs.10.50 lakhs (Previous year 17.5 lakhs).

23.	 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

 Sale of products : 

 Sale of finished products  15,076.72  11,352.35 

 Sale of traded products  504.69  804.57 

 Other operating revenue:  

 Scrap sales  384.87  159.39 

Total  15,966.27  12,316.30 
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	 Disaggregation revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Wires & Cables  14,942.48  11,495.92 

Switch Gears  134.24  96.93 

Copper Trading  199.94  507.52 

Other Traded goods sold  304.75  56.55 

Scrap  384.87  159.39 

Total  15,966.27  12,316.31 

	 Disaggregation revenue by geographical region

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Within India  15,926.98  12,169.68 

Outside India  39.29  146.63 

Total  15,966.27  12,316.31 

	 Revenue disaggregation by timings of satisfaction of performance obligation 

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

At a point in time  15,966.27  12,316.31 

Over a period of time  -    -   

Total  15,966.27  12,316.31 

24.	 Other income

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Interest income from bank deposits  27.38  41.50 

Interest income on others  12.33  10.39 

Other Non-operating income  15.22  74.88 

Gain on fair valuation of insurance policy  2.29 9.92

Rent Received  2.40  2.40 

Bad debts Recovered  -    15.02 

Total  59.62  154.11 
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25.	 Cost of raw material and components consumed

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,037.76  803.45 

Add : Purchases during the year  13,405.48  9,214.32 

Less : Inventory at the end of the year  958.42  1,037.76 

Total  13,484.83  8,980.01 

26.	 Purchase of traded goods

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Wires & Cables & other traded goods  248.15  194.32 

Switch Gears  5.81  1.20 

Copper Trading  199.59  508.27 

Total  453.55  703.80 

27.	 Changes in inventory of finished goods, Work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and scrap

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Inventories at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade  144.05  165.15 

Work-in-progress  3,780.34  2,685.20 

Finished goods  2,783.95  2,014.72 

Scrap  162.40  142.31 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade  165.15  190.13 

Work-in-progress  2,685.20  1,896.23 

Finished Goods  2,014.72  2,442.14 

Scrap  142.31  128.96 

 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Stock-in-trade  21.10  24.98 

Work-in-progress  (1,095.14)  (788.98)

Finished goods  (769.23)  427.42 

Scrap  (20.09)  (13.35)

Less: obsolete stock written off  -    (457.59)

Total  (1,863.36)  (807.51)
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28.	 Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,229.65  1,109.31 
Contribution to provident and other funds  55.66  57.55 
Gratuity  28.30  28.14 
Workmen and Staff welfare expenses  42.58  45.06 
Total  1,356.19  1,240.07 

29.	 Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Interest accretion on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  767.15  651.50 
Bank charges  269.49  175.81 
Total  1,036.64  827.31 

30.	 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 3)  135.36 158.88
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)  3.95 5.73
Total  139.31  164.61 

31.	 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Consumption of stores and spares  48.11  49.15 
Consumption of packing material  271.89  239.65 
Power and fuel  300.24  216.18 
Job work charges  25.51  70.85 
Lease Rent Expenses  61.34  25.11 
Repairs and maintenance :  
        Building  7.91  12.87 
        Plant and machinery  32.51  42.34 
        Others  16.08  15.29 
Rates and taxes  17.33  19.87 
Vehicle Maintenance  20.11  20.70 
Travelling and conveyance  56.15  33.26 
Legal and professional fees*  63.81  121.55 
Insurance  25.97  20.03 
Communication charges  17.25  17.24 
Freight and forwarding charges (Net)  119.87  69.71 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  0.31  11.93 
Provision for doubtful debts  -    7.00 
Printing & Stationery  6.34  7.17 
Liquidated Damages  1.83  8.59 
Miscellaneous expenses  208.19  230.73 
Total  1,314.32  1,239.21 



78

Delton Cables Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)
*Includes payments to auditors as follows:  

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  

31 March 2021

Payments to auditors
As auditor:
Statutory audit fee    7.00  7.00 
Tax audit fee  2.00  2.00 
Limited reviews fee    2.25    2.25  
In other capacities:       
Taxation Matters    0.21  -
Other matters  1.00 -
Total  12.46 11.25

32.	 Exceptional items

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  

31 March 2021

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (0.06)  (7.09)

Loss on disposal of Investment  0.14  -   

Total  0.08  (7.09)

33	 Fair value measurement and financial instruments
(a)	 Financial instruments – by category and fair values hierarchy
	 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilties, including their levels 

in the fair value hierarchy.
	 As on 31 March 2022

Particulars

 

Note

 

Carrying value Fair value measurement 
using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets                
Non-current                
Investments  5  0.19  -    -    0.19  -    -    0.19 
Other financial assets  6  53.86  -    61.43  115.29  -    -    115.29 
Current                
Trade receivables*  11  -    -    3,494.67  3,494.67  -    -    3,494.67 
Cash and cash equivalents*  12  -    -    143.41  143.41  -    -    143.41 
Other bank balances*  13  -    -    374.84  374.84  -    -    374.84 
Other financial assets  7  -    -    137.11  137.11  -    -    137.11 
TOTAL  54.05  -    4,211.45  4,265.50  4,265.50 
Financial liabilities                
Non-current                
Borrowings#  17  -    -    1,075.79  1,075.79  -    -    1,075.79 
Other financial liabilities*  21  -    -    5.00  5.00  -    -    5.00 
Current              - 
Borrowings#  17  -    -    5,984.41  5,984.41  -    -    5,984.41 
Trade payables*  20  -    -    2,958.70  2,958.70  -    -    2,958.70 
Other current financial 
liabilities*

 21  -    -    18.32  18.32  -    -    18.32 

TOTAL  -    -    10,042.23 10,042.23  10,042.23 
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	 As on 31 March 2021

Particulars

 

Note

 

Carrying value Fair value measurement 
using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets                

Non-current                

Investments  5  0.33  -    -    0.33  -    -    0.33 

Other financial assets  6  46.41  -    100.43  146.84  -    -    146.84 

Current                

Trade receivables*  11  -    -    3,348.13  3,348.13  -    -    3,348.13 

Cash and cash equivalents*  12  -    -    171.72  171.72  -    -    171.72 

Other bank balances*  13  -    -    446.22  446.22  -    -    446.22 

Other financial assets  7  -    -    104.43  104.43  -    -    104.43 

TOTAL  46.74  -    4,170.93  4,217.67  4,217.67 

Financial liabilities                

Non-current                

Borrowings#  17  -    -    684.06  684.06  -    -    684.06 

Other financial liabilities*  21  -    -    5.00  5.00  -    -    5.00 

Current          -      - 

Borrowings#  17  -    -    5,545.89  5,545.89  -    -    5,545.89 

Trade payables*  20  -    -    2,104.18  2,104.18  -    -    2,104.18 

Other current financial liabilities*  21  -    -    53.60  53.60  -    -    53.60 

TOTAL     -    -    8,392.74  8,392.74  8,392.74 

	 # Some of the Company’s borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of interest, which resets at short intervals. 
Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) approximates fair value.

	 * The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and 
cash equivalents, other current financial assets and other current financial liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their 
short-term nature. The other non-current financial assets represents bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from 
the reporting date) and interest accrued but not due on bank deposits, the carrying value of which approximates the fair values 
as on the reporting date.

	 There has been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value	

	 The fair values for investments and loans were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate. They 
are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty 
credit risk.

	 All of the resulting fair value estimates for unlisted equity securities, where the fair values have been determined based on 
present values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk.	
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	 Valuation processes

	 The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required 
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the Senior Management. Discussions 
on valuation and results are held between the Senior Management and valuation team atleast once every quarter in line with the 
Company’s quarterly reporting periods.

(b)	 Financial risk management

	 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:	

•	 Credit risk ;	

•	 Liquidity risk ;

•	 Market Risk - Foreign currency ; and 

•	 Market Risk - Interest rate

	 Risk management framework

	 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The board of directors has authorized respective business Managers to establish the processes, who 
ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework.

	 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed by the business managers periodically  to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The 
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(i)	  Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the 
Balance Sheet

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Trade receivables  3,494.67  3,348.13 

Cash and cash equivalents  143.41  171.72 

Other bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  374.84  446.22 

Other financial assets  252.40  251.27 

	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations.

	 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The loan represents security deposits given to suppliers, employees and 
others. The credit risk associated with such deposits is relatively low.

	 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the 
industry and country in which customers operate.

	 The Company’s  Management  has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for 
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review 
includes market check, industry feedback, past financials and external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank 
references. Sale limits are established for each customer and any sales exceeding those limits require necessary approval.
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	 Majority of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company from many years, and no impairment loss has 
been recognized against these customers. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are reviewed  according to their credit 
characteristics, including whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their geographic location, industry and existence of 
previous financial difficulties.

	 As per Ind AS 109, the Company makes allowance for doubtful trade receivable using simplified approach , significant judgement 
is used to estimate doubtful accounts as prescribed in IND AS 109 . In estimating doubtful accounts historical and anticipated 
customer performance are considered. Changes in the economy, industry, or specific customer conditions may require 
adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts recorded in financial statements. This is done on the basis of company’s 
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Based on the 
business environment in which the Company operates, management considers that the trade receivables (other than receivables 
from government departments) are in default (credit impaired) if the payments are more than 365 days past due however the 
Company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more than 365 
days past due and the probability of recovery determined by the competent management.

	 The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars Gross carrying amount

As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Less than 6 months  2,812.08  2,726.47 

6 months -1 year  120.46  135.31 

1-2 years  203.79  167.48 

2-3 years  73.16  124.04 

 More than 3 years  326.03  235.68 

 3,535.52  3,388.98 

* 	 The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 1 year are still collectible in full, 
based on historical payment behaviour.

# 	 The Company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more 
than 365 days past due.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year  (40.85)  (34)

Impairment loss recognised / (reversed)  -    (7.00)

Amount written off  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  (40.85)  (40.85)

(ii)	 Liquidity risk
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 

that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to have sufficient 
liquidity to meet it’s liabilties when they are due, under both normal and stressed circumstances, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

	 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the 
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under 
credit facilities.
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	 Liquidity risk results from the Company’s potential inability to meet the obligations associated with its financial liabilities, for 
example settle-ment of financial debt and paying suppliers. The Company’s liquidity is managed by Company Treasury. The 
aim is to ensure effective liquidity management, which primarily involves obtaining sufficient committed credit facilities to ensure 
adequate financial resources and, to some extent, tapping a range of funding sources.

	 Net financial debt is used internally by Company Treasury to monitor the Company’s credit resources available. Net financial 
debt is the Company’s net interest-bearing debt, excluding interest-bearing assets, as these assets are not actively managed 
in relation to liquidity risk. 

	 At 31 March 2022, net financial debt was Rs. 6540.82 (31 March 2021: Rs.5647.92 ).

	 At 31 March 2022, the Company had total unutilised credit facilities of INR 354.03 (31 March 2021: INR 410.78 ), of which INR 
Nil (31 March 2021: INR Nil)was non-current credit facilities. Credit resources available consist of the unutilised credit facilities, 
bank balances and cash and cash equivalents of INR 874.19 (31 March 2021: INR 1028.72).

	 Exposure to liquity risk
	 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash flow 

amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

As at 31 March 2022
 

Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows Total
Less than six 

months
Between 

six months 
and one 

year

Between 
one and 

five years

More 
than 5 
years

Non derivative financial liabilities            

Borrowings - term loan  1,075.79  -    -    1,075.79  -    1,075.79 

Current financial liabilities          

Borrowings -  (repayable on demand)  5,984.41  5,984.41  -    -    -    5,984.41 
Borrowings - Current maturities of long-
term borrowings 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade payables  2,958.70  2,958.70  -    -    -    2,958.70 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  18.32  18.32  -    -    -    18.32 

   10,037.23  8,961.44  -    1,075.79  -   10,037.23 

As at 31 March 2021 Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows Total
Less than six 

months
Between 

six months 
and one 

year

Between 
one and 

five years

More 
than 5 
years

Non derivative financial liabilities            
Borrowings - term loan  698.78  -    -    562.23  136.55  698.78 
Current financial liabilities            

Borrowings -  (repayable on demand)  5,545.89  5,545.89  -    -    -    5,545.89 
Borrowings - Current maturities of long-
term borrowings 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade payables  2,104.18  2,104.18  -    -    -    2,104.18 
Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings

 31.58  31.58  -    -    31.58 

   8,380.44  7,681.66  -    562.23  136.55  8,380.44 

	 The inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derivative 
financial liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity. 
The interest payments on variable interest rate loans  in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting 
date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change.
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(iii)	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises two types of risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

A. 	 Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
borrowings with floating interest rates.

	 Exposure to interest rate risk	

	 The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loan carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations 
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes 
as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Fixed rate liabilities
Borrowings  -  - 

 -  - 

Effect of interest rate swaps

 -  - 

Variable rate liabilities

Borrowings  7,060.20  6,244.68 

 7,060.20  6,244.68 

Effect of interest rate swaps  -    -   

 7,060.20  6,244.68 

Total  7,060.20  6,244.68 

	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

	 A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 

Particulars Statement of Profit and Loss Equity, net of tax
100 bp 

increase
100 bp 

decrease
100 bp 

increase
100 bp 

decrease
For the year ended 31 March 2022 70.60  (70.60) 70.60  (70.60)

Foreign currency term loan- from others
Cash flow sensitivity        

         

Particulars Statement of Profit and Loss Equity, net of tax

100 bp 
increase

100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

For the year ended 31 March 2021  62.45 (62.45)  62.45 (62.45)

Foreign currency term loan- from others

Cash flow sensitivity

	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
	 The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
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B.	 Currency risk

	 Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial 
position and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other 
currencies from the Company’s operating, investing and financing activities.	

	 Exposure to foreign currency risk

	 The summary of quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at 31 
March 2022 are as below:

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars USD GBP Total

Financial assets 

Trade receivables  3.69  -    3.69 

Total financial assets  3.69  -    3.69 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables  -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  -    -    -   

	 Sensitivity analysis

	 A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31 March 2022 and 31 
March 2021 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and affected 
Statement of Profit and Loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is peformed on foreign currency denominated mon-
etary financial assets and financial liabilities outstanding as at the year end.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars

 

Statement of Profit and Loss  
for the year ended  

31 March 2022

Statement of Profit and Loss  
for the year ended  

31 March 2021
Gain/ (loss) on 

appreciation
Gain/ (loss) on 

depreciation
Gain/ (loss) on 

appreciation
Gain/ (loss) on 

depreciation
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian 
Rupees against following foreign currencies:

USD  0.04  (0.04)  64.62  (64.62)

Total  0.04  (0.04)  64.62  (64.62)

USD: United States Dollar.

Capital Management	

The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in 
order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business 
opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows. Management also 
monitors the return on equity.	

The Board of directors regularly review the Company’s capital structure in light of the economic conditions, business strategies 
and future commitments.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued share capital, securites premium and all other 
equity reserves. Debt includes term loan.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, no significant changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes 
relating to the management of the Company’s capital structure.
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Debt equity ratio:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Long-term borrowings  1,075.79  698.78 

Short-term borrowings  5,984.41  5,545.89 

Adjusted net debt (A)  7,060.20  6,244.68 

Equity share capital  864.00  864.00 

Other equity  4,743.77  4,650.88 

Total Equity (B)  5,607.77  5,514.88 

Debt equity ratio (C = A/B)  1.26  1.13 

Return on equity:

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Profit after tax  92.89  53.00 
Equity share capital  864.00  864.00 
Other equity  4,743.77  4,650.88 
Total equity  5,607.77  5,514.88 

Return on equity Ratio (%) 1.66% 0.96%

34.	 Segment reporting	

A.	 Basis for Segment reporting
	 Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation
	 The company is engaged in manufacturing of Wire, cable and Switchgears. Operating segments are reported in a manner 

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is considered 
to be the Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments. The CODM has determined only one operating segment.

	 Geographical Segments
	 The geographical segment have been identified on the basis of the location of customers. The total market of the Company 

can be segregated into domestic and overseas market.	

	 The distribution of the Company’s consolidated Sales (Gross) by geographical location of customers is as follows:-

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended  
31 March 2021

Domestic market  15,926.98  12,169.67 
Overseas market  39.29  146.63 
Total  15,966.27  12,316.30 

	 The following table shows the carrying amount of trade receivable by geographical market.

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 
March 2021

Domestic market  3,490.98  3,347.35 
Overseas market  3.69  0.78 
Total  3,494.67  3,348.13 

	 The Company has common fixed assets in India for producing goods/providing services to domestic as well as overseas 
markets. Hence, separate figures for fixed assets/additions to fixed assets have not been furnished.
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35.	 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
	 The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which 

recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs 
Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Based on information received and available with the 
Company, there are no amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2022, and 31 March 2021 except as 
follows:-

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

1 The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of accounting year.    

 - Principal amount  628.62  198.78 

 - Interest thereon  -  - 

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the Micro 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year. 

 -  - 

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

 -  - 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of each 
accounting year, and   -  - 

5 The amount of further interest remaining due and   payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date  when the interest dues as above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006. 

 -  - 

36.	 Employee benefit obligations

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current

Leave obligations (i)  6.38  19.26 

Gratuity (ii)  106.47  100.23 

Total non-current employee benefit obligations  112.84  119.49 

 

Current

Leave obligations (i)  24.40  4.76 

Gratuity (ii)  137.05  153.62 

Total current employee benefit obligations  161.45  158.38 
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(i)	 Leave obligations	
	 The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability of earned leave.
	 The amount of the provision of Rs. 24.40 lacs (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 4.76 lacs) is presented as current since the Company 

does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, 
the Company does not expect all employees to take full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 
months. The following amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current leave obligations not expected to be settled within the next 12 
months  -  - 

(ii)	 Post-employment obligations
a) 	 Gratuity
	 The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The employees who 

are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on re-
tirement / termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days’ 
salary multiplied with the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes 
contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level 
of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(iii)	 Defined contribution plans
	 The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund, employee pension 

scheme and employee’s state insurance scheme for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to reg-
istered funds administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it 
has no further contractual or any constructive obligation.

	 Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity	
	 The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are 

as follows:

Particulars Present value 
of obligation
(Rs. in Lacs)

Fair value of 
plan assets

(Rs. in Lacs)

Net amount
(Rs. in Lacs)

April 1, 2021  253.96  0.10  254.06 

Current service cost  16.05  -    16.05 

Interest expense/(income)  12.25  -    12.25 

Total amount recognised in profit or loss  28.30  -    28.30 

Remeasurements  

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in 
interest expense/(income)

 -    0.01  0.01 

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  (3.27)  -    (3.27)

Experience (gains)/losses  (19.69)  -    (19.69)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (22.96) 0.01 (22.95)

Employer contributions -  -   -

Benefit payments (15.68) - (15.68)

 March 31, 2022 243.62 0.11 243.73
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022
(Rs. in Lacs)

31 March 2021
(Rs. in Lacs)

Present value of funded obligation  243.62  253.96 

Fair value of plan assets  (0.11)  (0.10)

Deficit of funded plan  243.51  253.86 

Unfunded plans  -    -   

Deficit of gratuity plan  243.51  253.86 

(iv)	 Post employment benefits (gratuity)	

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.28% 6.92%

Salary growth rate First year-1.5%  
2nd year 3% 

thereafter 5%

First year-1.5%  
2nd year 3% 

thereafter 5%

Mortality rate  Published rates under Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table 

(v)	 Sensitivity analysis

	 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:	

(i)	 Changes in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase/decease in discount rate

Particulars 31 March 2022   31 March 2021   

a) Defined benefit obligation  243.62  253.96 

b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% increase in discount rate 235.33  245.64 

c) Defined benefit obligation at 1% decrease in discount rate 253.12  263.63 

d) Decrease in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in discount 
rate (a-b)

 8.29  8.32 

e) Increase in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount 
rate (c-a)

 9.50  9.67 

(ii)	 Changes in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase/decease in salary growth rate

Particulars 31 March 2022   31 March 2021   

a) Defined benefit obligation  243.62  253.96 

b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% increase in salary growth rate  253.28  263.20 

c) Defined benefit obligation at 1% decrease in salary growth rate  235.05  245.85 

d) Increase in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in salary 
growth rate (b-a)

 9.66  9.25 

e) Decrease in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in salary 
growth rate (a-c)

 8.57  8.11 
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(iii)	 Changes in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase/decease in mortality rate, is negligible.

	 The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumption the same method (present value of the 
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been 
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

	 The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior 
period.

(vi)	 The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars   March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

Unquoted in % Unquoted in %

Investment funds  

Plan assets with recognised gratuity trust which has taken 
a gratuity policy with the Life Insurance Corporation of India 
(LIC)

 (0.11) 100%  (0.10) 100%

Total  (0.11) 100%  (0.10) 100%

(vii)	 Risk exposure
	 Through its defined benefit plan, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are defined below:

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount 
rate determined by reference to yield on government bonds. If plan liability is funded 
and return on plan assets is lower than yield on the government bonds, it will create 
a plan deficit.

Interest risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.

Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to 
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. The mortality table used for 
the purpose is Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate table published by 
the Institute of Actuaries of India. A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on 
the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption 
of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase 
of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to 
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

	 The Company ensures that investment positions are managed within an asset/liability matching (ALM) framework that has 
been developed to achieve long term investments that are in line with the obligations under employee benefit plans. Within 
this framework, the Company’s ALM objective is to match assets to the Gratuity obligations by investing in Plan assets with 
recognised gratuity trust which has taken a gratuity policy with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) with maturities that 
match the benefit payments as they fall due.

	 The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash 
outflows arising from the employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes to manage its risk from 
previous periods.

	 The Company believes the LIC policy offers reasonable returns over the long-term with an acceptable level of risk.

	 The plan asset mix is in compliance with the requirements of the local regulations.

	



90

Delton Cables Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(Rupees in lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

(viii)	 Defined benefit liability and employer contributions 

	 The Company has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the deficit in defined benefit gratuity plan over the coming years. Funding 
levels are monitored on an annual basis and the current agreed contribution rate as advised by the LIC. The Company considers 
that the contribution rates set at the last valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the coming years and that 
regular contributions, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.

	 The expected maturity analysis of gratuity is as follows:

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 31 March 2022  31 March 2021   

Year 1  137.16  153.73 

Year 2  8.42  3.35 

Year 3  4.07  8.67 

Year 4  2.92  3.72 

Year 5  5.82  3.24 

Years 6 to 10  100.34  95.01 

Above 10 years  106.87  100.45 

37.	 Leases
A.	 As a Lessee

	 Property, Plant and Equipment comprise owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property.

Particulars Note As at  
31st March 2022

As at  
31st March 2021

Property, plant and equipment owned 3  1,035.44  1,088.20 

Right-of-use assets, except for investment property  -    20.26 

 1,035.44  1,108.46 

The Company leases  Buildings for offical use. Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented 
below.

Right-of-use assets

Particulars Building 

Balance at 1 April 2020 70.17

Additions:

Depreciation charge for the year 49.91

Balance at 31st March 2021 20.26

Balance at 1 April 2021  20.26 

Additions:  -   

Depreciation charge for the year  20.26 

Balance at 31st March 2022  -   
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Lease liabilities

Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Less than one year  -   24.00

One to five years  -    -   

More than five years  -    -   

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31st March, 2022  -   24.00

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position As at 
31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2021

Current  -   22.02

Non-current  -    -   

Amounts recognised in profit or loss Period ended  
31 March 2022

Period ended  
31 March 2021

Interest on lease liabilities  1.98 10.81

Expenses relating to short-term leases 61.34 25.11

Particulars Period ended  
31 March 2022

Period ended  
31 March 2021

Total cash outflow for leases 24.00 24.00

There are no significant restrictions or covenants imposed by the leases

There are no lease pending commencement to which the Company has committed as at year ended March 31, 2022

38.	 Disclosure of Related parties/ Related parties transactions :

a) List of Related Parties and relationships
i) Enterprises having Significant influence of 

KMP’s
Delton International Ltd.

Vishranti Trading Enterprises Ltd.
Saneh Industrial Investments Ltd.
B & M Trading & Investment Company Ltd.
Delton Cable Company
Viga Trade Solutions Pvt.Ltd.
Ram Kumar Gupta & Sons Limited
Allied Promoters Ltd.

ii) Key Management Personnel Mr. V.K. Gupta- Chairman
Mr. Vivek Gupta- Managing Director
Mr. S. S Bhandari, Whole Time Director (Till August 9, 2021)
Mr. Shashi Sharma Kumar (From August 11, 2021)
Mrs. Shalini Gupta, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Arun Kamra-CFO
Mr. Vikas Rawat,Company Secretary 

iii) Relative of Key Management Personnel Ms. Sherya Gupta (Daughter of Mr. Vivek Gupta, MD)
Ms. Isha Gupta (Daughter of Mr. Vivek Gupta, MD)
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b)	 Transactions during the year with related party

S. 
No.

Particulars Enterprises 
having Significant 

influence of KMP’s

Key Management 
Personnel

Relative of 
KMP

Total

 i)    Rent Received    2.40  -    -    2.40 

 (2.40)  -    -    (2.40)

 ii)    Loan Received  218.00  380.00  45.00  643.00 

 -    -    -    -   

 iii)    Loan Repaid  218.00  80.00  45.00  343.00 

 -    -    -    -   

 iv)
 

 Salary  -    66.18  27.92  94.10 

 -    (44.48)  (22.37)  (66.85)

 v)    Managerial Remuneration 
 

-  135.14 -  135.14 

 -    (113.89)  -    (113.89)

 vi)  Sitting Fees 
 

-  4.46  1.08  5.54 

-  (2.74)  (0.83)  (3.57)

 vii)    Rent paid 
 

 23.76  24.00 -  47.76 

 (26.42)  (22.10) -  (48.52)

 viii)  Reimbursement of expenses  5.39  12.01 -  17.40 

 (7.35)  (23.26) -  (30.61)

c)	  Balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 

S. 
No.

Particulars Enterprises 
having Significant 

influence of KMP’s

Key Management 
Personnel

Relative of 
KMP

Total

 i)  Balance Payable  7.88  328.19  -    336.07 

     (32.27)  (14.85)  (2.12)  (49.24)

 ii)  Balance Receivable  -    -    -    -   

     (0.02)  -    -    (0.02)

 iii)  Security deposit given  28.00 - -  28.00 

     (28.00)  -    -    (28.00)

	 *Figures in brackets represents corresponding amounts of previous years.

39.	 Capital and other commitments

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for 

 - -
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40.	 Contingent liabilities
	 Claims / show cause notices against the Company disputed by the Company not acknowledged as debt:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

(a) Income tax matters  124.22  124.22 

(b) Excise duty matters  39.75  39.75 

(c) Sales tax matters  -    102.10 

(d) Civil Suits  0.51  0.51 

(e) Guarantee issued by Banks (net of margin)  386.62  429.80 

(f) Sales Tax sureties given for third parties  0.80  0.80 

Total  551.90  697.18 

The guarantees have been given in the ordinary course of business and the obligations are expected to be discharged 
accordingly and no liability is anticipated in these respects.

In respect of the above claims and notices against the Company which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, all 
available legal steps have been taken to protect the Company’s interest. Based on the status of these cases and as advised by 
Company’s advisors, wherever applicable, the management believes that the Company has strong chance of success and the 
existing provision would be sufficient to meet the liability if any arises on the Company.

41.	 Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/ companies in which 
directors are interested
Security Deposit Rs. 28 lakhs to Delton Cable Company for Office premises. (As on March 31, 2021 - Rs. 28 lakhs.)

Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 28 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 28 lakhs.)Repayable on expiry of lease term 

42.	 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents that are required by the 
transfer pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

43.	 The computation of basic/diluted earnings / (loss) per share is set out below:	 			 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

(a) Basic earnings per share

 From continuing operations  0.89  0.72 

(b) Diluted earnings per share

 From continuing operations  0.89  0.72 

(c) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic and Diluted earning per share

Profit used in calculating basic/diluted earnings per share

 From continuing operations  76.61  62.32 

   76.61  62.32 

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

  (No. of shares) (No. of shares)

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares 
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

 86.40  86.40 
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44.	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
	 All significant assets and cash generating unit were tested for impairment. The recoverable amount of signifaicant assets and 

cash generating units was found higher than the carrying value. No impairment was identified.

 	 Additional disclosures not required by Division II-Ind AS Schedule III

45.	 Value of Imports calculated on CIF Basis (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Raw materials and components  33.70  59.17

import of Machinery  -   -

Total  33.70 59.17

46.	 Earnings in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Exports at F.O.B value  39.29  94.05

Total  39.29  94.05

47.	 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Travelling - 0.52
Membership Fees  2.65 1.97
Professional Fees - 2.19
Miscellaneous expenses - 0.56
Total  2.65 5.24

48.	 Significant Ratio
Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year 

ended 
31 March 2022

For the year  
ended 

31 March 2021

% 
Variance

(a) Current Ratio, Current Assets Current Liabilities  1.38  1.37 0.81%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, Total Borrowings Total equity  1.26  1.13 11.19%
(c) Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio, 

Earn available for debt 
service*

Debt Services**  0.98  1.25 -21.26%

(d) Return on Equity Ratio, Total Comprehensive 
Income

Total equity  0.02  0.01 72.35%

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory  1.86  1.68 10.45%
(f) Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio, 

Net Credit Sales Average trade 
receivable

 4.55  4.09 11.29%

(g) Trade payables turnover 
ratio, 

Net credit purchases Average trade 
payables

 5.47  4.45 23.13%

(h) Net capital turnover ratio, Net Sales Working Capital  4.52  4.16 8.59%
(i) Net profit ratio, Profit for the year (after tax) Net Sales  0.00  0.01 -5.17%
(j) Return on Capital 
employed, 

Earning before interest and 
tax

Capital 
employed***

 0.09  0.08 10.66%

* Profit for the year (after tax) + Depreciation and amortisation expense + Finance Cost
** Finance Costs and borrowing repayment obligations
*** Includes Shareholder’s Funds and Total Debt less Intangible Assets
#Variance on account of increase in Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2021-22 from 2020-21
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49.	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021. 

50.	 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

51.	 There are no undisclosed incomes that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

52.	 The company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956. 

53.	 In terms of Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to constitute a corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors and the Company has to spend 2% of the average net profits of the Company’s 
three immediately preceding financial year calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act 2013. Gross amount required 
to be spent by the Company during the year: Nil (Previous year : Nil)

54.	 Previous year’s figures have been rearranged, where necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.	

As per our report of even date attached
For Bansal & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 	 Delton Cables Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001113N/N500079
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Place : New Delhi	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date  :  May 27, 2022	 (Arun Kamra)	 (Vikas Rawat)
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